Public Document Pack

O) Brent

Alcohol and Entertainment
Licensing Sub-Committee

Tuesday 18 May 2021 at 2.00 pm

This will be held as an online virtual Meeting
Details on how to access the link in order to view the meeting will be

made available online via the following link: https://www.brent.gov.uk/your-
council/democracy-in-brent/local-democracy/live-streaming/

Membership:
Members Substitute Members
Councillors: Councillors:

Long (Vice-Chair)
Ahmed Chohan, Denselow, Hector, Kennely, McLeish,
Hylton Shahzad, Maurice

For further information contact: Devbai Bhanji, Governance Assistant
Tel: 020 8937 6841; Email: devbai.bhanji@brent.gov.uk

For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the

minutes of this meeting have been published visit:
www.brent.gov.uk/committees

The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting as an
online virtual meeting. The link to view the meeting will be made
available via the following link: https://www.brent.gov.uk/your-

council/democracy-in-brent/local-democracy/live-streaming/

(vrecydle

for Brent


https://www.brent.gov.uk/your-council/democracy-in-brent/local-democracy/live-streaming/
https://www.brent.gov.uk/your-council/democracy-in-brent/local-democracy/live-streaming/
https://www.brent.gov.uk/your-council/democracy-in-brent/local-democracy/live-streaming/
https://www.brent.gov.uk/your-council/democracy-in-brent/local-democracy/live-streaming/

Notes for Members - Declarations of Interest:

If a Member is aware they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business, they
must declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent and
must leave the room without participating in discussion of the item.

If a Member is aware they have a Personal Interest** in an item of business, they must declare its
existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent.

If the Personal Interest is also significant enough to affect your judgement of a public interest and
either it affects a financial position or relates to a regulatory matter then after disclosing the
interest to the meeting the Member must leave the room without participating in discussion of the
item, except that they may first make representations, answer guestions or give evidence relating
to the matter, provided that the public are allowed to attend the meeting for those purposes.

*Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:

@) Employment, etc. - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit gain.

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of expenses in carrying
out duties as a member, or of election; including from a trade union.

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between the Councillors or
their partner (or a body in which one has a beneficial interest) and the council.

(d) Land - Any benéeficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.

(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or longer.

)] Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in which the
Councillor or their partner have a beneficial interest.

(9) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place of business or
land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or of any one class of its issued
share capital.

**Personal Interests:

The business relates to or affects:

(a) Anybody of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management, and:

To which you are appointed by the council;

which exercises functions of a public nature;

which is directed is to charitable purposes;

whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or policy (including a

political party of trade union).

(b) The interests a of a person from whom you have received gifts or hospitality of at least £50 as
a member in the municipal year;

or
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or
financial position of:
e You yourself;
e a member of your family or your friend or any person with whom you have a close
association or any person or body who is the subject of a registrable personal interest.



Agenda

Introductions, if appropriate.

ltem Page

1  Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members
2  Declarations of Interests

Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, the nature
and existence of any relevant disclosable pecuniary or personal interests
in the items on this agenda and to specify the item(s) to which they relate.

3  Application for a New Premises Licence by Gorillas Technologies 1-74
Ltd for premises known as Gorillas, 113 Bryan Avenue, NW10 2AS,
pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003

Date of the next meeting: Date Not Specified

Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting.
e The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for
members of the public.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

LICENSING ACT 2003

Application for New Premises Licence

1. The Application

Name of Applicant: Gorillas Technologies Ltd

Name & Address of Premises: | Gorillas, 113 Bryan Avenue, NW10 2AS

Applicants Agent: Craig Baylis

The application is for a new premises licence:

1 For the sale of alcohol and to remain open from 8.00am to Midnight Monday to Sunday.

2. Background
None
3. Promotion of the Licensing Objectives

See page 2 of the application

4, Relevant Representations

Representations were received and withdrawn from the Police and Licensing Officers.
Representations remain outstanding, from 60 residents and 2 Councillors. We have also
received a petition signed by 44 residents, the names and addresses have not been
included for data protection purposes.

5. Interested Parties
None
6. Policy Considerations

Policy 1 — Process for Applications

Conditions on the licence, additional to those voluntarily sought/agreed by the applicant,
may be considered. Conditions will focus on matters which are within the control of
individual licensee and which relate to the premises or areas being used for licensable
activities, the potential impact of the resulting activities in the vicinity. If situations arise
where the licensing objectives may be undermined but cannot be dealt with by the use
of appropriate conditions the Licensing Authority will consider whether it is appropriate for a
licence to be granted or continue to operate.

Page 1



Determination of the Application

Members can take the following steps when determining a new premises licence
application:

e grant the licence;

¢ exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates;

o refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor;

e reject the application

Associated Papers

Application Form & Plan
Residents Reps & evidence
Councillor Reps

Police Reps & withdrawal
Licensing Reps & withdrawal
OS Map

nmoow>

Page 2



Pari 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises, ar if none, ordinance survey map reference or description

Gorillas
113 Bryan Avenue, London, Brent, NW10 2AS

Telephone Number at premises {if any):

Non domestic rateable value; 23750

Part 2 — Applicant Details

Proposed Licence Holder:
Gorillas Technologies Ltd
Grinas Technologies Lid

Part 3 — Operating Schedule

When do you want the premises licence to start? 18-04-2021

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when do you want it to end?

If 5,000 or more people are expected to aitend the premises at any one time, please state the number expected to attend:

Please give a genheral description of the premises: warehouse providing delivery service to customers whe have ordered
goods online or via an app. The public do not have access to the premises as they are for delivery only

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?
Section J: Sale of alcohol: Off the premises

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Section J: Sale or Supply of Alcohol: Off the premises

Day Start Time End Time
Manday 08:00 00:00
ITuesday 08:00 00:00
Wednesday 08:00 00:00
Thursday 08:00 00.00
Friday 08:00 00:00
Saturday 08:00 00:00
Sunday 08:00 00:00

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated premises
supervisor:

Roberta Abbate

Date of birth:

Page 3



Licence Number:
Issuing authority:

Concerns in respect of Children: none

The opening hours of the premises

Day Start Time End Time
Monday 08:00 00:00
Tuasday 08:00 00:00
Wednesday (08:00 00:00
Thursday (8:00 00:00
Friday 08:00 00:00
Saturday 08:00 00:00
Sunday 08:00 00:00

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b, ¢, d, e):The person taking the arder and Jor making the delivery must
enstre that the recipient is 18 years of age. If they appear under 25 years of age, photographic 1D will be required before
the alcohol is handed over. Acceptable identification for the purpose of this conditian:

b} The prevention of crime and disorder:sase box a

¢) Public safety: see hox a

d) The prevention of public nuisance: see box a

@) The protection of children from harm:see box a

Page 4




Conditions Proposed

The person taking the order and /or making the delivery must
ensure that the recipient is 18 years of age. If they appear
under 25 years of age, photographic ID will be required before
the alcohol is handed over. Acceptable identification for the
purpose of this condition:

Current passport or an equivalent form of identification such as
a national identity card with a photograph and date of birth;
Current photographic driving licence or provisional licence with
date of birth

Military identification Card with a photograph and date of birth;
and

A Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) approved age card.

a) Staff making the deliveries of alcohol must be at least 18 years of
age

b) Alcohol can only be delivered to a residential or business address
not a public place

c) Delivery staff will not deliver to any person anywhere other than a
residential/business address given when the order was placed

d) Any deliveries containing alcohol where the recipient is unable to
provide identification and proof of age will be terminated.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



\% Grag Avenue
NLNO

Seale
\ v \oo

_@ e ex(T

RN AN
L GHONG

- 3.90 -
T ¢
|

LoD Flory

@ &




This page is intentionally left blank



Gorillas Technologies, 113 Bryan Avenue, NW10 2AS
Resident Rep 1

24/03/21

| object on the grounds of public nuisance . Bryan Avenue is a quiet, residential street with a high
density of families with children. The noise and traffic of delivery vehicles especially later at night
will create noise nuisance for residents. If the license limited to earlier in the evening (8pm for
example) that will fix much of the noise concern.

Resident Rep 2

24/03/21

The hours of operation are not suitable to a residential street. It will be a public nuisance and also
given the children of Bryan Ave play near the warehouse there is an increased risk of harm.

Resident Rep 3

27-03-2021

1-Commercial /retail use of 113 Bryan Avenue NW10 will result in a public nuisance to the
residents in the road. 2-The intended hours of commercial activity will mean additional vehicles and
delivery bikes using the entirety of this quiet, residential road. This will mean additional risks to
road safety for the residents and their young family members. 3- By the nature of the intended
retail premises, there is a new risk of crime and disorder due to alcohol misuse in the road and
surrounding area.

Resident Rep 4

28-03-2021

| have serious concerns about this application having young family, ||| | || the license
address: - this is a residential, very quiet street. The hours —to midnight 7 days / week seems to
completely disregard the residential nature of the neighbourhood. - The increased traffic flow —
noise and light nuisance in evenings in particular —delivery drivers (even bike riders talk and make
noise) and larger supply vehicles. - The risk of people drinking nearby — litter, noise, anti-social
behaviour etc — if this is a place where people may also be pick up in person. Again, the residential
nature of the neighbourhood seems to be ignored. - There are empty shops on the high road that
may be more suitably located — ie in areas predominantly zoned commercial and where other
delivery businesses are all based (Park Royal industrial estates come to mind)

Resident Rep 5

25-03-2021

Hello , My house is located | ]JJEIIE t-< warehouse . Under no circumstances | can
imagine deliveries throughout WHOLE DAY - until midnight.. | have a smail child and our street is
quiet and safe . We won't be able to sleep (drivers off for deliveries/ drunk people wandering
around my house ) . My daughter will not be safe anymore on our lovely , family street .Big NO
fromme .

Resident Rep 6

30-03-2021

Dear Authority, Please find my opposing argument for permitting alcohol licence to Gorillas
Technologies Ltd operating under 113 Bryan Avenue NW10 2AS One of the biggest issues for me
is the everyday operation which is accommodated by long hours. This residential area which is
identified as ADRC (Area of Distinctive Residential Character} cannot accommodate such
practices. Architecturally the bedrooms on this road are facing the property in question which
means the noise will be very prominent at night. This is a very quiet road, at night you can hear
people walking past the window, | cannot imagine the noise pollution that would be produced if the
operations were to happen so late (after quiet hours!) which is plain nuisance. This disturbs the

Page 9



amity and harmony of this road aswell as the safety of my children, as | do not feel safe with
people operating at such antisocial hour. Additionally, | do not feel that this road can accommodate
a higher-level congestion. The distribution will require medium sized vans to participate in this
operation, and as you can observe our cars are now at a higher risk of damage as its very tight
which would create a disorder on the road. | have also had a frequent problem with people
breaking into my van to steal tools as well as attempting to seal my catalyst converter from
underneath the car. | strongly believe that the presence of this Wearhouse will only attract further
criminals back to the area which this road has been trying to fight off for some time now. | am sure
that there are several police reports on this case filed by myself aswell as my neighbours. Thank
you for taking your time reading this | hope to deal with this case in an expedite way.

Resident Rep 7

30-03-2021

Bryan Avenue is entirely unsuitable for a business of this kind. It is a narrow residential street with
many of the properties having bedrooms which face onto the street. Despite the use of electric
bikes for deliveries, deliveries will be required at a business that will be open until midnight.
Delivery drivers inevitably will be waiting outside which will disturb residents. The deliveries will
cause an increase in traffic in this very quiet area .

Resident Rep 8

31-03-2021

| object to granting an alcohol license to the above premises on the following grounds. Bryan
Avenue is a residential street, with most bedrooms facing the road. Extended hours from 8 am till
midnight, and weekends will create traffic and noise, which will be a nuisance to the residents. In
particular, lorries or vans for deliveries will contribute to noise and pollution. In addition, an alcohol
license will create the possibility of consuming alcohol close to the premises, ie, in our strest -
albeit illegal, street alcohol consumption is wide spread nearby close to the library. Lastly, and
most importantly, couriers coming and going throughout the extended hours will increase traffic
problems and present a real and visible danger to public safety. The bottom part of Bryan Avenue
has a bend and an incling, and vehicles passing each other always exercise additional care to
avoid collision. At some point towards the bottom of the road, vehicles coming down do not see the
rest of the street, and have to proceed slowly. Due fo street parking on both sides, the space for
pulling in towards the curb is limited. Cyclists milling around late at night and in hours of poor
visibility will significantly increase the risk of a traffic accident. Therefore, it is very important that
even if the license is granted, the hours of operation should be restricted to 9 am to 5 pm,
weekdays only. Any outlet with extended hours and employing cyclists should be located in the
high street where all other deliveries businesses are located, where traffic is more visible and
better regulated.

Resident Rep 9

01-04-2021

we are concerned that such a business would affect us negatively. We believe public nuisance will
increase, especially from6pm to midnight, this is a quiet residential street. increased motorised
veichles going up and down the road increasing the risk of harm for all of the residents, and
possible large truck delivery weekly will cause congestion. happy to take a phone call to discuss.

Page 10



Resident Rep 10

Dear Licensing Officer, Objection to Premises License application: The License application has
been submitted by Gorillas Technologies Ltd concerning 113 Bryan Avenue, NW10 2AS
(‘warehouse') The warehouse location is in a quiet residential street and the granting of the licence
will have a negative impact until midnight in terms of the traffic, noise, odours, litter, light and air
pollution. The hours of business proposed as 8 am until midnight, seven days a week are too long
and are not compatible with this residential location, an unreasonable balance of business and
residential needs. The opening hours of this business would have a negative impact on the mental
health and well being of residents. Public Safety & Protection of Children from harm: There will be
deliveries and collections by trucks, lorries, vans, couriers, and bikes up to midnight seven days a
week. When the warehouse was in use in the past 9 years, the hours of operation were 9 am-8
pm, Monday to Friday. During those years, the road has been blocked when deliveries are being
unloaded. There is narrow yard space at the premises and when trucks reverse in then the
pavement will be blocked. There is limited parking space on Bryan Avenue and any additional
parking by employees/customers near 113 Bryan Avenue premises would exacerbate the situation.
With parking on both sides of the street, there is a narrow turn-in at 113 Bryan Avenue. Also, there
are two tight bends and a steep incline on Bryan Avenue that make pulling in for passing traffic
difficult. Deliveries and couriers’ activities will increase traffic with an increased risk of accidents,
noise and harm to children. As this is an App/online delivery service it will significantly increase
traffic on Bryan Avenue and there will be more noise nuisance and increased pollution. Public
Nuisance: If the workers are gig-workers/self-employed there may be a lot of people waiting
outside the warehouse or on the street for their order(s) to be ready — noise generated by the
delivery drivers talking on their phones, talking to one another and playing music. The scooters and
mopeds will cause noise disturbances to residents—especially at unsociable hours of the day when
the ambient noise is reduced. There may be alcohol consumption on the street with increased
littering and fouling.

Resident Rep 11

To Head of Service, Brent Council Regulatory Services. RE:-APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES
LICENCE 113 BRYAN AVENUE NW10 2AS

resident of Bryan Avenue and oppose this application because of the significant adverse effects on
the quality of life of residents in Bryan Avenue and the Dobree Estate. My objections are based on
the following points, and refer to "Prevention of Public Nuisance": 1. Bryan Avenue is part of an
ADRC (Area of Distinctive Residential Character). Apart from 113, all the buildings are residential.
Most bedrooms in the houses face on to the street. it is therefore an entirely inappropriate location
for a business involving numbers of delivery/courier vehicles with inevitable noise (and headlights
after dark) from vehicles; the drivers/riders of those vehicles as they arrive/depart and inevitably
converse outside the premises, especially in the evenings and weekends.

2. Granting a license will mean that there would be a significant amount of travel by
couriers/delivery people, who may be travelling by car or motorcycle — while the applicants refer to
bicycles and e-bikes, there is no specific exclusion of noisier and more dangerous forms of delivery
mode of tfransport.

3. Granting a license will mean inevitable noise from couriers/delivery people gathering and
conversing outside the premises. This, as well as the noise from delivery/courier vehicles will have
more of an impact on local residents from such a business than if it were to be located in more
appropriate premises, such as Willesden High Road, ie in areas predominantly zoned commercial
and where other delivery businesses are all based.

4. The specific hours applied for mean that the premises will be closing up just after midnight, with
inevitable noise after this time.

5. While | appreciate that this is a License Application rather than a specifically Planning issue, |
must point out that 113 (previously Brent Council stores) has only been in operation as a
warehouse from 8 am to 6 pm. It has not been regularly used on weekends (one short term tenant
in the last 40 years did have some limited use on a Saturday morning), and certainly not on

Page 11



Sundays or from 6pm 1o midnight in the week. This is my central point: arrival/departure of
couriers/delivery riders or drivers in the hours after 6pm or at weekends will create additional noise
and nuisance problems. 6. Therefore: if the licensing committee is minded to approve the licence,
then there should conditions that state there to be no activity or deliveries to or from the site
between, say 6pm to 9am the following morning; not on Saturday afternoons from 1pm; and not at
all on a Sunday. To do so otherwise would in effect mean a change of use for 113 Bryan Avenue.
The amenity of local residents, who should not have to be disturbed by commercial activity of this
type at these hours (evenings and weekends), would be drastically adversely affected if the license
application as it stands were to be accepted.

Resident Rep 11 — additional

To Brent Council Business Licensing:

Dear Sir/Ms.,

| write with regard to the planning permission and business licensing

implications for the licensing application for 113 Bryan Avenue NW10 2AS.

As a former local government officer, | am aware that licensing and

planning are separate functions of Brent Council: nevertheless, in this case,

if the application for a premises licence were to be granted in the terms

requested there would be significant implications for planning and business

licensing.

Please see point 5 (highlighted) in my objections to Regulatory Services.

My concern is that:

113 Bryan Avenue (formerly known as “The Stores”, as these

premises were owned by LB Brent and used to store equipment such

as wheelchairs) has never been used as commercial premises with

hours of operation outside normal working hours (9 am to 5 pm) and

certainly not on Sundays or up to midnight in the week. For Brent

Council Regulatory Services to allow a license for hours beyond

normal warehouse or similar commercial premises working hours

would, in our view, constitute a change of use to planning regulations and require an
application for planning permission accordingly. The building has B8 storage and
distribution planning permission. However, it has previously only be used for storage (and
distribution of a small number of items during the weekdays} and - most importantly - within
warehouse/office hours, and certainly not until midnight or on Sundays. Please note also
that the unit is more than 500m? so it will not come under permitted development and will
need planning permission for what is in effect a change of use.

Please let me know your views on this as soon as possible.

Resident Rep 12
On the grounds of Prevention of Public nuisance. Prevention of crime and Disorder.

The impact of the prposal | feel would disrupt the characteristic features of the road as
a residental area. The Willisden High Street from Walm Lane to Willesden Courts have many more
suited premises. Bryan Avenue is part of an ADRC (Area of Distinctive Residential Character).
Apart from 113, all the buildings are residential. Most bedrooms in the houses face on to the street.
It is therefore an entirely inappropriate location for a business involving numbers of delivery/courier
vehicles with inevitable noise {(and headlights after dark) from vehicles; the drivers/riders of those
vehicles as they arrive/depart and inevitably converse outside the premises, especially in the
evenings and weekends.

Resident Rep 13

Bryan Avenue is a quiet, tree-lined residential location. There will need to be supply vehicles,
delivery drivers and staff entering and exiting the premises. The light and noise nuisance that
would be caused by licensing a premises for the hours suggested (e.g. voices, vehicles and doors,
late at night in a very quiet area) is a significant concern. The proposal appears to completely
disregard the residential nature of the neighbourhood and should not be approved. In addition to

Page 12



likely nuisance, | also have safety concerns. The avenue is narrow, curved, and slopes up-hill.
There are with cars parked on both sides. Effectively, the avenue is for one-way traffic. We have
already had accidents on the road, people that were not locals / not residents driving too quickly.
The last one was a delivery driver, after dark, on a moped bike in March 2021 and was near fatal.
Any increased traffic flow should be discouraged at any hour, but in particular after dark when
there is lower visibility. Personally, | commute by bicycle and have concerns for my personal safety
with deliver drivers, supply trucks, staff cars etc. and our neighbours have young children and pets.
Again any licence for the hours suggested should not be approved.

Resident Rep 14

RE: Application for a premises License 113 Bryan Avenue NW102AS [ EGTNNRNGEGEGEEEE
* and | am writing to strongly oppose this application

under several of the four licensing objectives. Bryan Avenue is a quiet residential area. Granting a
license to enable an enterprise of this nature, which is entirely out of keeping with the area, will
severely and detrimentally impact the lives, privacy, comfort and common rights of the residents of
Bryan Avenue and the whole Dobree Estate. Bryan Avenue is an ADRC ( Area of Distinctive
Residential Character} with a Catholic Church and an Islamic College closeby. Nearly all
residences on Bryan Avenue have bedrooms facing the street. There will be constant traffic,
congestion and disruption caused by alcohol delivery vans and couriers coming and going.
Couriers waiting around for alcohol orders will generate noise and litter and encourage antisocial
behaviours such as public drinking and drug dealing / taking. Previous businesses using 113 Bryan
Avenue have operated 8am to 6pm on weekdays and not on weekends, apart from one business
that had some limited activity on Saturday mornings. The very long operating hours proposed, 8am
to midnight 7 days a week will additionally exacerbate the noise and likely nuisances to be suffered
by residents. Closing up activities, occurring after midnight 7 days a week, will cause further
nuisance, noise and disruption. Increase in traffic, alcohol deliveries and loitering of couriers and
others will result in increased risks / endangerment of resident children. Many children live in the
area and children in a number of adjacent properties have bedrooms in close proximity to the
warehouse. They will be unable to sleep or rest properly. Mothers and children travelling by foot to
schools, kindergarten’s etc. will be endangered by increased traffic, disrupted and negatively
impacted. The presence of alcohol in large quantities on the premises will be attractive to criminals
and result in increased burglaries and crime in the area. Overall granting this license would
severely impact the quality and enjoyment of life of residents in their own homes. It will also
severely and negatively impact property values resulting in financial loss and damage to all
residents in Bryan Avenue and the Dobree Estate. Parking available for residents is already limited
and this will make it impossible for residents to find parking in reasonable proximity to their own
homes. Alcohol delivery vans and couriers will also result in increased risk of damage to the
vehicles and property of residents. Commercial vehicles, particularly larger lorries are inappropriate
for residential streets. There are any number of more suitable sites available locally for a licensed
business, especially given the large number of failed businesses / empty commercial sites due to
the pandemic etc. There are a number of light industrial estates locally with vacancies, Park Royal
is not far away, the local High Roads, in serious need of revitalisation and rejuvenation have many
vacant shops and premises. There are a number of closed and boarded up pubs locally etc.

Resident Rep 15
Dear Head of Service, Brent Council Regulatory Services and Licensing Committee, ||| NN
, | am writing to submit my strong opposition to the granting of the license for
Gorillas Inc. for 113 Bryan Avenue on the grounds of prevention of public nuisance, public safety
and protection of children from harm. Bryan Avenue is a very quiet residential street, several
streets off the main commercial roads and does not even have a bus route along it unlike
neighbouring Peter Avenue and Chambers Lane/Harlesdon Road. The structure of the housing
coupled with the street's quiet nature means that almost alt of the street has their bedrooms facing
the street instead of the gardens. Whilst the warehouse in question is contemporaneous with the
housing - the proposed usage, whilst still likely fitting just within planning, is novel and untested.
The usage is very different from what the warehouse was intended for - long term storage of
equipment from the old Willesden Hospital with only infrequent visits. It poses significant risks of
public nuisance. The proposed hours of licensing, and hence operation, will not only exacerbate

Page 13



these risks but be responsible for the bulk of them. * PUBLIC NUISANCE FROM EXTENDED
HOURS OF OPERATION The proposed licensee states hours of operation from 8am to midnight
every day. This would likely entail the premises being open for business from at least 7am to well
past midnight every night with couriers and deliveries to and from the building at all licensed times,
noisily locking up and opening, and deliveries to it outside of those times. This is unacceptable.
Whilst light industrial units are to be expected to cause some noise and nuisance - that nuisance
must usually be iimited to normal working hours in residential areas or moved to a more suitable
location. In fact, it is notable that at least 2 other businesses have recently requested ficenses from
Brent for a similar use but they will be based out of industrial parks which are more suited to this
kind of activity than a residential area. It is telling that the proposed licensee does not and has not
considered this aspect of public nuisance in their proposed conditions. There is a growing
understanding within licensing committees across the country that the duty of prevention of public
nuisance from licensed premises does not only apply to nuisance from the eventual consumer of
alcohol but to the complete business. Whilst this committee's own guidance in Policy 21 is rather
terse on this matter, even Westminster Council has published guidance mostly relating to delivery
from takeaways and restaurants
(https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/documents/s23145/Delivery%20services.pdf) which
recognises that there is a serious public nuisance hazard from delivery and couriering, and the
couriers themselves. * PUBLIC NUISANCE FROM COURIERS AND DELIVERIES FROM THE
WAREHOUSE Gorillas suggests on its website that it would use e-bikes for its delivery from its
warehouses but | note that this is not proposed as a condition for its license - no doubt because
most alcohol deliveries from the warehouse are likely to require motocycle couriering or even car
couriering. The bulk of these deliveries from the premises are likely to happen outside of normal
working hours, most likely after 10pm and thus cause substantial public nuisance. | also note on
the proposed plan of the business there is no apparent staff room or courier resting area - which
will mean spillover of couriers congregating outside of the warehouse causing public nuisance to
the residents of Grange House and those opposite the warehouse. * PUBLIC NUISANCE FROM
DELIVERIES TO THE WAREHOUSE The proposed license states no conditions on the times of
delivery to the warehouse, again demonstrating that the licensee has not recognised that this is an
entirely residential area. Gorillas have demonstrated a complete disregard for residents in their
stocking up of an Islington premise with deliveries being made to that property from 5am (see
https://democracy.islington.gov.uk/documents/g3888/Public%20reports%20pack%2030th-Mar-
2021%2018.30%20Licensing%20Sub%20Committee%20B.pdf?T=10 page 127). Their behaviour
at these other sites suggests that they are not suitable licensees and will be terrible neighbours. *
PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM AND PUBLIC SAFETY it should be noted that Bryan
Avenue due to its quiet nature is on the walking path for many schoolchildren who choose to use it
to walk to and from school over Chambers Lane/Harlesden Road and the High Road. Having
deliveries to the

site before 9am and after 4pm risks considerable danger to the children living not only on this
street but in the area. Motorised couriers will represent a considerable increase in road traffic and
represent a danger to children and public safety. The road is narrow with parked residents cars
along much of the way - congregating couriers, deliveries blocking the path and increased traffic
will all force residents and children to walk along the road and face considerably increased danger.
* NEARBY CUMULATIVE IMPACT ZONE Although Bryan Avenue does not technically fall within a
cumulative impact zone, it is very close to the Willesden CIZ. Had anyone ever envisaged this
warehouse being used in this manner, | have no doubt that it would have been included in the CIZ.
There are substantial numbers of off-licenses in the environs - and we are not exactly starved for
delivery services. * CONCLUSION | therefore strongly recommend that the licensing committee
REJECT this application on the grounds of prevention of public nuisance and safety of children,
however if the licensing committee is minded to approve the license they must impose at least the
following conditions: * No deliveries fo the site before Sam or after 6pm. This is a common
condition that Brent imposes on its off-licenses and | can see absolutely no reason for this to not
apply here. * The proposed hours of licensed operation are excessive and should be restricted to
11pm at the latest but given the siting on a residential street perhaps earlier. * The use of
motorvehicle couriers must be restricted or banned entirely; certainly there should be no motorised
(car or motorcycle) couriers before 9am, between 4pm and 8pm or after 9pm. * Bicycle and E-Bike
(and motorcycle if they are permitted) couriers must carefully choose their routes - after 9pm they

Page 14



must leave Bryan Avenue by turning right on to Peter Avenue unless they are delivering further up
Bryan Avenue or elsewhere on the Dobree estate. Bryan Avenue is not a main road and traffic
should use roads which are designated for this use. * Couriers must be banned or otherwise
discouraged from congregating outside of the warehouse either inside its boundaries or elsewhere.
The grass outside of Grange House is not a public park or amenity. There must be no noise from
the couriers after 9pm. Gorillas should commit to cleaning the environs of cigarette butts and other
detritus. * The warehouse premises themselves have roller shutters, metal door and heavy metal
gates. The roller shutters are very noisy - their use after 9pm must be banned. The gates and door
are otherwise noisy - a specific condition must be applied to make Gorillas take action to silence
the noise from these especially if licensed activity is to be allowed after 11pm. * The process of
lock-up and opening-up must be silent. If the license is granted to midnight - lock-up of the
premises is going to occur welt after midnight. The manager involved must themselves abide by
the conditions for couriers above. It would not be acceptable for the business to be otherwise silent
until every night at 0030 when the manager locks up - slams the gates, gets into and starts their 3
Transit Van and races up the hill at 4000 RPM waking everyone up. This is a residential street -
there should be no noise from any part of the business outside of normal working hours. Gorillas
may complain that they would not suffer such conditions if they were not asking for a license -
however as the Westminster City Council document suggests - conditions imposed under the
ficensing act 2003 on public nuisance need not be restricted to alcohol directly and it is unlikely that
anyone would be ordering a jar of arrabbiata sauce at quarter to midnight unless alcohol was also
{likely already) involved. Yours Faithfully,

Resident Rep 16

the need to clarify my discomfort towards this incoming business. Here are some important points
that | need to highlight: - For years Bryan Avenue has been a quiet and comfy residential area. The
incoming enterprise will not only break with its tranquility, but not sooner or later this will bring a
bad impact on its surroundings, transforming a residential area into a more commercial and
crowded ubication. It is not a blame towards the opening of the enterprise, but for its content that
will be for sale. - The alcohol industry can spoil the peace on its area, not for the single fact of
selling drinks to customers but for the criminal acts that can bloom and therefore increase in the
matter of days or weeks. - We must also consider that the drinking activity aims to create disturbing
environments with litter and noise among many others. It is well known that this kind of business
will attract people that suffer from alcohol addiction. This will affect the resident’s privacy since
clients can invade private gardens or front doors, facing directly from the resident’s windows. Not
only will it happen during the day but also at night due to the business opening hours. This will
surely increase the amount of problems and reports to the police. - The area is strongly surrounded
and inhabited by catholic and Islamic behaviors. The presence of alcohol on its premises will
clearly create a huge discomfort and insecurity to its residentials, affecting all ages, from kids to
elders. Parents will feel constantly insecure for their children's behavior since most of them go for
themselves from their homes to their education center. - The traffic and parking slots will influence
considerably, since clients and transporting vans for the enterprise’s content will be arriving and
departing daily. It is already tough to find parking slots for the proper residentials, so this arriving
will not help at all. Most of the neighborhood is compounded by working residentials, so parking
and traffic issues will not be greatly welcome. This kind of business is more likely to be seen in an
industrial or commercial area. It would provide wider streets and better access for clients and
providers and with no residential neighbours. However, placing this business in a residential area
will create not only discomfort but a conflict with the neighborhood and its residentials.

Resident Rep 17

We write with our objection to the proposed Application for a Premises Licence for the warehouse,
113 Bryan Avenue, Willesden, London, NWW10 2AS. Bryan Avenue is an extremely quiet residential
road which is completely surrounded by residential roads on all sides. The road, Bryan Avenue is
also very narrow with an extended bend in the road causing a blind spot. The planned hours of
business (Gorillas Technologies) 08:00 to 00:00 Monday to Sunday is totally unacceptable to the

Page 15



residents in Bryan Avenue where there are families with young children living literally next door,
opposite and all along Bryan Avenue and the warehouse. The proposed hours of business will
impose greatly on the residents of Bryan Avenue: i.e. Noise, Inconvenience, Parking and Health
and Safety issues: The warehouse does not have sufficient capacity of room to receive and unload
the delivery of goods within its premises. Logistically this will be challenging for the delivery drivers
to find space within the premises of the warehouse, plus the use of a forklift vehicle; space will be
very restrictive and unworkable. | would ask where would the holding bay be for delivery
lorries/juggernauts to unload their goods. In reality vehicles will then have to park either on the
roadside, or in the driveway of the warehouse causing pedestrians to step out into the road (this
would be a health and safety issue especially parents with children). Or the delivery vehicles wiil
have to park in the middle of the road, thus having a negative effect on the flow of traffic and/or
residents trying to leave or return to their homes. In conjunction with the delivery vehicles, forklift
vehicles will have to be used to unload the goods, which will further impact obstruction and the flow
of traffic. Loss of parking spaces for residents (which has been paid for) Bin collections will be
impeded causing delays to their work rounds Early morning/Late night and weekend working hours
will impose noise disturbances greatly to the residents of Bryan Avenue: i.e. early/late deliveries,
the use of a forklift vehicle(s) to unload goods. Employees, such as couriers hanging around the
premises and surrounding location will cause noise disturbances to the residents. Even though the
hours of business are excessive for a residential road (Bryan Avenue) when will the actual
deliveries start and finish and when will employees finish? There is fear that the hours of noise and
disturbances will be prolonged. Additional debris accumulating around the area: There are no
public bins in our road, and it is only cleaned once a week, as it is a residential street. Health &
Safety:: There is potential danger for residents, pedestrians, families with children to navigate
around: Delivery vehicles Forklift vehicles E-bike riders Moped riders {with the possibility of future
use) The manoeuvring of large vehicles and forklift vehicles along with e-bike riders shooting in
and out of the premises with the future possibility of moped riders is a cause for concern. Road
safety. Due to the nature of the street, cyclists or motorbike couriers milling around the area at
times of poor visibility will increase the danger of traffic accidents. Just a few weeks ago a delivery
rider was involved in a road traffic accident up the road in Bryan Avenue Combination of poor
street lighting and employees hanging around late in the evenings would be intimidating for women
coming home on their own. Plus extra noise disturbances from people hanging about. The above
clearly shows that the proposed Premises Licence and use of the warehouse is totally out of place
and is not fit for purpose in our residential road, Bryan Avenue. Bryan Avenue is known for its Area
of Distinctive Residential Character (ADRC) and will become a conservation area in time. We as
residents feel very strongly about the Character of our road and the use of the Warehouse in such
a way is totally unreasonable and unacceptable to us the residents of Bryan Avenue. It would be
more feasible for this enterprise (Gorillas Technologies) to operate from a trading estate oron a
high street, where they can carry out their business which would be more beneficial to them
without disturbing their neighbours, in this Bryan Avenue and its residents.

Resident Rep 17 — Additional Rep

14-04-21

[ have already lodged an objection to the Licencing proposal for 113 Bryan Avenue.

Furthermore, | am very concerned about the the public safety concerns and want to let you

know that a near fatal traffic accident occurred on Bryan Avenue on the 8 March at 23:00

involving a food delivery scooter and a car. The accident was due to the narrow street with

lots of parked cars and poor visibility on a bend in the road. It was an awful thing to have
happened on the street and was very distressing. Having more traffic on Bryan Avenue will in my
mind cause further accidents to occur, especially as courier riders tend to whizz about hurriedly to
delivery their goods. Bryan Avenue is a very narrow road with a bend causing a blind spot where
this accident took place. To add more traffic than normal will cause further incidents to occur. It will
be further dangerous for pedestrians who happen to be walking past at any time day or night given
the nature of courier whizzing in and out of the premises. Also large lorries delivering to the
Warehouse will find it difficult to park up on the premises and parking in the driveway will also be
dangerous for pedestrians. On another aspect of the proposed Licencing: | think that it will make it
very easy for underage drinking as all they have to do is order alcohol on an app. Will the courier
riders be vigilant or in deed would they have the time or interest to ensure no underage drinking is

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



living on Bryan Avenue, threatens neighbouring family’s right of full and peaceful enjoyment of their
own home, disturbs the quiet on our street and it is completely inappropriate for its residential
nature. Granting this licence can only introduce noisy goods and foot traffic at all hours of the
morning and night, involve groups of people congregating under our bedroom windows, but more
concerning than anything else will introduce a purely downside risk of underage and inappropriate
drinking at home in the local area. This business is unnecessary in an area already full of ready
sources of alcohol for collection and delivery, lacks any face-to-face vetting of customers by senior
staff, is already proving a nuisance to local residents in the area of Islington where they are already
operating. 4. The committee should also take in consideration the following points: a)The presence
of alcohol in large quantities on the premises will be attractive to criminals and result in increased
burglaries and crime in the area. b)Overall granting this license would severely impact the guality
and enjoyment of life of residents in their own homes. it will also severely and negatively impact
property values resulting in financial loss and damage to all residents in Bryan Avenue and the
Dobree Estate. c)Parking available for residents is already limited and this will make it impossible
for residents to find parking in reasonable proximity to their own homes. d)Alcohol delivery vans
and couriers will also result in increased risk of damage to the vehicles and property of residents.
Commercial vehicles, particularly larger lorries are inappropriate for residential streets. e)There is a
large number of more suitable sites available locally for a licensed business, especially given the
number of failed businesses / empty commercial sites due to the pandemic etc. There are a
number of light industrial estates locally with vacancies, Park Royal is not far away, the local High
Roads, in serious need of revitalisation and rejuvenation have many vacant shops and premises.
There are a number of closed and boarded up pubs locally etc. 5. And last but no least, the council
should consider that many properties located on Bryan Avenue have already been unfavourably
affected by the granting of the licence for extended hours of operation to the Rising Sun Pub which
is located just behind the warehouse on 113 Bryan Avenue. Since the granting of the said licence
the pub has been a constant cause of nuisance for the residents of those adjacent properties; as a
matter of fact, in many occasions the police had to be called because of fights happening between
customers of the pub and in particular on the 5th December 2020 a fight between customers of the
pub has escalated to a stabbing which the police is still investigating. We therefore ask that the
Brent Council Regulatory Services and Licensing Committee MUST keep particularly in mind the
residents of those properties located in the vicinity of the Pub and the Warehouse when giving
thorough and careful consideration to the granting of the licence in question. Please treat this
among the many other objections from us and other Bryan Avenue residents with the deep
seriousness it plainly deserves, and consider these evident facts as grounds for refusing this
application. CONCLUSION We therefore strongly recommend that the licensing committee
REJECT this application on the grounds above mentioned, however if the licensing committee is
minded to approve the license they must impose the explicit condition that the licence is for
activities or deliveries to or from the site from 8am to 6pm Mon to Fri and Saturday from 8am to
1pm; and not at all on a Sunday. If the license application as it stands were to be accepted without
imposing the above said condition, it would amount to a change of use for 113 Bryan Avenue and
the amenity of local residents, who should not have to be disturbed by commercial activity of this
type at these hours (evenings and weekends), would be drastically, adversely affected.

Resident Rep 19

05/04/21

Brent Council Regulatory Services -

We live in Peter Avenue near 113 Bryan Avenue.

We are opposed to the licence application from Gorillas Technologies Ltd for a premises licence
for 113 Bryan Avenue on the grounds that:

= |t would increase traffic in the immediate area, which is residential, particularly in the evening.

= Deliveries and collections would create noise disturbing to the residents through the day and into
the evening.

= It would create a risk of traffic accidents in Bryan Avenue with vehicles coming and going at the
premises at night in what is a narrow street with parking on both sides near an uphill turn with poor
visibility.

= It would result in obstruction to pedestrian traffic in Bryan Avenue near the premises with
couriers milling around while pickling up their consignments.

Page 20



= It is unlikely that casual couriers would consistently observe conditions such limiting the route to
be used going to and from the premises.

= It is unlikely that litter left by couriers would be cleared up promptly.

Best wishes,

Resident Rep 20

About Bryan Avenue, the local area and its residents and why | strongly oppose granting a license
for Gorillas Inc. for 113 Bryan Avenue: The Avenue is a
very quiet and narrow residential street. It is home to many families with chiidren and elderly
residents. Due to the internal layouts most homes on the Avenue have street facing bedrooms.
The Avenue sits within an ADRC (Area of Distinctive Residential Character). In the very immediate
area is a large Catholic Church and an Islamic College. Considering the character of the local area
and for the reasons outlined in my submission below, | strongly oppose granting a license for
Gorillas Inc. for 113 Bryan Avenue. This outcome would negatively impact on the community living
in the neighbourhood. Also, importantly, the proposed hours of operation (e.g., significantly after 5
pm and at weekends), changes the nature of the use of the premise and is totally different for what
has previously been allowed. Change of Usage Significantly Differs From Original; Previous
husinesses using 113 Bryan Avenue have operated 8am to 6pm on weekdays and not on
weekends, apart from one business that had some limited activity on Saturday mornings. Also,
none of these businesses had any connection with alcohol. To accept this proposal would change
the nature of usage which greatly differs to what has been allowed to date. Presumably the
operating hours in use historically and up until now were implemented to respect that this is a
residential area. Public Nuisance - Extended Operational Hours and Deliveries: The proposal is for
operating hours from 8am to midnight seven days a week. In reality, the business would be
opening and closing well cutside these already anti-social hours in a residential area. The licence
application does not specify what times deliveries can take place. So big delivery trucks could
descend upon the street at any time. Public Nuisance — Operating Practices: The Gorillas website
states it undertakes deliveries using e-bikes. But there is no licence condition for this operating
practice. So, there is a real risk that more noisy and polluting forms of vehicles will be used. This is
a major concern given that the demand for their services will come in the evening so accentuating
the public nuisance. The business has not explained what toilet and rest room facilities will be
provided for their workers. The local community must have assurances that these will be made
available on-site to stop workers from using the surrounding public spaces for these activities.
Public Safety Concerns — Traffic: Bryan Avenue is a very narrow street with resident parking along
most of if. Plus, there is a slope and several blind spots. All these factors have resulted in
numerous car scrapes and accidents over the years. The most recent took place at the start of
2021 and ironically involved a near fatal delivery bike crash. To increase the amount of traffic
would be dangerous and physically there is no space for delivery vehicles/bikes to park safely.
Parking available for residents is already limited and this proposal will make this even more
constrained. If the hours of operation coincided with schools, there would be the additional risk to
children walking to and from school. Has the Council conducted a traffic impact study fo assess all
these risks? Public Safety Concerns — Crime: The licence will mean that high value goods such as
alcohol will be kept on site. This will increase the risk of burglaries. Public Safety Concerns — Litter,
Rubbish, Pollution and Noise: The business will increase litter, rubbish, pollution and noise on
Bryan Avenue and the local area. This is due to the vastly higher usage of the street by an activity
that it is not designed for. At present, there are no public bins installed in the street to deal with this
litter. The noise created by the business is the biggest concern, especially given the proposed
hours. Better Local Options: In conclusion, the local area has several far more suitable sites for this
licensed business. If this business was in a place zoned for light industrial or warehousing, all my
objections would be redundant. BUT, as described, Bryan Avenue is a narrow street in a very quiet
residential area. This proposal therefore would do significant and lasting damage to people’s lives
and so must be rejected. Yours Faithfully

Resident Rep 20 — Additional Rep
13-04-21

Page 21



A near fatal traffic accident occurred on Bryan Avenue on the 8t march 2021 at 23.00The
accident involved a food delivery scooter that due to the narrow street and a sharp bend hit
a car

Given the nature of the injuries and the noise etc. the impact on the local residents was very upsetting. One
of the residents went out to hold his hand to keep him alive until the ambulance arrived. We do not know
if the driver passed away.

This type of incident is a real risk given the street layout, narrowness and the number of parked cars. This
is a danger to both residents and road users and Bryan Avenue does not have the capacity for more traffic.
Please can you ensure this evidence is presented to the committee | will arrange for photos of the street to
be supplied shortly

Thanks for your help

Resident Rep 21

08-04-2021

This is a quiet residential area with a lot of families and this company would be disturbing the
neighbourhood out of hours through the night and at weekend.

Resident Rep 22

08-04-2021

| object to the preposal on the grounds of public nuisance, public safety and protecting children
from harm. The premises will be operational in an entirely residential area, apart from these
premises and the working hours of delivery traffic and activity within and outside the building is
from 8am until midnight 7 days a week 365 days a year, disturbing residents and increasing traffic
and therefore risks to pedestrians esp. through hours of darkness, morning and evening, increased
noise in the evenings disturbing residents, and increasing local polution and damaging air quality.
Children may have sleep disturbed an increase risk of road accident commuting to schoof and
socialising on the street and health issues arising from increased pollution due to an increase of
traffic for long hours and at weekends. This is all above the considerable health and safety
concerns of adapting a light commercial space to a transport and delivery hub on a residential
street. Totally unacceptable on these grounds.

Resident Rep 23

08-04-2021

Concerns of public nuisance and public safety. On the basis this is a residential area and having a
commercial delivery warehouse seems dangerous as well as socially unfriendly due to the hours
and 7 day operation. Finally, the stance this company has taken when doing this in other areas of
London leads me to have concerns of the companies through and views of the local
neighbourhood which they serve.

Resident Rep 24

08-04-2021

Concerns around noise, public safety as in a residential area with young children and elderly.
Increased traffic especially farge delivery vehicles on a very narrow highly populated road.

Resident Rep 25

08-04-2021

As owner and resident of | | | N ]JNEEEEE. | 2m writing to submit my strong opposition to the
granting of the license for Gorillas Technology Limited for 113 Bryan Avenue on the grounds of
prevention of public nuisance, public safety and protection of children from harm. * PROTECTION
OFCHILDREN FROM HARM AND PUBLIC SAFETY As a full-time working mother of | | | | kNG 8 IIN
Bl | am acutely aware of the dangers that my child and | will face as | attempt to put him in his
car seat with e-scooters and (inevitable) motorvehicles racing up and down an already extremely

Page 22



Page 23



2021%2018.30%20Licensing%20Sub%20Committee%20B.pdf?T=10 page 127). Their behaviour
at these other sites suggests that they are not suitable licensees and will be terrible neighbours. *
NEARBY CUMULATIVE IMPACT ZONE Although Bryan Avenue does not technically fall within a
cumuiative impact zone, it is very close to the Willesden CiZ. Had anyone ever envisaged this
warehouse being used in this manner, | have no doubt that it would have been included in the CIZ.
There are substantial numbers of off-licenses in the environs - and we are not exactly starved for
delivery services. * CONCLUSION 1 therefore strongly recommend that the licensing committee
REJECT this application on the grounds of prevention of public nuisance and safety of children,
however if the licensing committee is minded to approve the license they must impose at least the
following conditions: * No deliveries to the site before 9am or after 6pm. This is a common
condition that Brent imposes on its off-licenses and | can see absolutely no reason for this to not
apply here. *

The proposed hours of licensed operation are excessive and should be restricted o 11pm at the
latest but given the siting on a residential street perhaps earlier. * The use of motorvehicle couriers
must be restricted or banned entirely; certainly there should be no motorised (car or motorcycle)
couriers before 9am, between 4pm and 6pm or after 9pm. * Bicycle and E-Bike (and motorcycle if
they are permitted) couriers must carefully choose their routes - after 9pm they must leave Bryan
Avenue by turning right on to Peter Avenue unless they are delivering further up Bryan Avenue or
elsewhere on the Dobree estate. Bryan Avenue is not a main road and traffic should use roads
which are designated for this use. * Couriers must be banned or otherwise discouraged from
congregating outside of the warehouse either inside its boundaries or elsewhere. The grass
outside of Grange House is not a public park or amenity. There must be no noise from the couriers
after 9pm. Goriilas should commit to cleaning the environs of cigarette butts and other detritus, *
The warehouse premises themselves have roller shutters, metal door and heavy metal gates. The
roller shutters are very noisy - their use after 9pm must be banned. The gates and door are
otherwise noisy - a specific condition must be applied to make Gorillas take action to silence the
noise from these especially if licensed activity is to be allowed after 11pm. * The process of lock-up
and opening-up must be silent. If the license is granted to midnight - lock-up of the premises is
going to occur well after midnight. The manager involved must themselves abide by the conditions
for couriers above. It would not be acceptable for the business to be otherwise silent until every
night at 0030 when the manager locks up - slams the gates, gets into and starts their 3| Transit
Van and races up the hill at 4000 RPM waking everyone up. This is a residential street - there
should be no noise from any part of the business outside of normal working hours. Gorillas may
complain that they would not suffer such conditions if they were not asking for a license - however
as the Westminster City Council document suggests - conditions imposed under the licensing act
2003 on public nuisance need not be restricted to alcohol directly and it is unlikely that anyone
would be ordering a jar of arrabbiata sauce at quarter to midnight unless alcohol was also (likely
already) invelved.

Resident Rep 26

08-04-21

Opposed to noise pollution from mopeds.. highly residential area and concern of safety re mopeds
and delivery vehicles with young kids present.

Resident Rep 27

11-04-21

Dear Head of Service, Brent Council Regulatory Services and Licensing Committee, As residents
of Bryan Avenue, we are writing to submit strong opposition to the granting of the license for
Gorillas Inc. for 113 Bryan Avenue on the grounds of prevention of public nuisance, public safety
and protection of children from harm. Bryan Avenue is a very quiet residential street, located
several streets off the main commercial road (Willesden High Road)} and with no bus route, unlike
neighbouring Peter Avenue, Chambers Lane and Harlesden Road. The structure of the housing
coupled with the street's quiet nature means that almost all the properties in the street have their
bedrooms facing the street instead of the gardens. Whilst the warehouse in question is
contemporaneous with the housing, the proposed usage as a dark supermarket, whilst possibly
just inline within current planning, is novel and untested. The usage is very different from what the

Page 24



warehouse was originally intended for: long term storage of equipment from the old Willesden
Hospital with only infrequent visits. This new usage poses significant risks of public nuisance and
the proposed hours of licensing and operation will not only exacerbate these risks but will be
responsible for the bulk of them. « PUBLIC NUISANCE FROM EXTENDED HOURS OF
OPERATION The proposed licensee states hours of operation from 8am to midnight every day.
This would likely entail the premises being open prior and after these hours for business for
deliveries, locking up etc. In a residential street, this is simply unacceptable. Whilst light industrial
units are to be expected to cause some noise and nuisance, this must usually be limited to normal
working hours in residential areas otherwise these units shouid be moved to a more suitable
location. Neither does the applicant appear to have considered this aspect of public nuisance in
their proposed conditions or has they supplied risk assessment. This is encouraged by Policy 5 of
Brent's Statement of Licensing Policy, including nuisance caused by the potential of noise. The
applicant has not proposed any measures to reduce public nuisance from the extended hours of
operation in-line with the same Policy. Considering the residential location of 113 Bryan Avenue
and hours of operation, the Committee should lock to impose stringent conditions within the license
on the applicant. We would also like to highlight that at least one other business (Weezy Group
Limited) has recently requested a licence from Brent for similar use and activity (Application no.
20880) but it is located in an industrial park, more suited for this activity. We believe it is pertinent
to note that Gorillas Inc. have also requested licences from Lambeth Council for their South
London operations within industrial park locations, rather than light industrial units within residential
areas. There is a growing understanding within licensing committees in London that the duty of
prevention of public nuisance from licensed premises does not only apply to nuisance from the
eventual consumer of alcohol but to the complete business. Whilst this committee's own guidance
in Policy 21 is rather light on the licensable activities of dark supermarkets — given that this is an
emerging technological retail trade - Westminster Council has published guidance, mostly relating
to delivery from takeaways and restaurants, which recognises that there is a serious public
nuisance hazard from delivery and couriering involving increased traffic, noise, litter and public
urination which we implore the Committee to consider. This guidance is available here:
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/documents/s23145/Delivery%20services.pdf. « PUBLIC
NUISANCE FROM COURIERS AND DELIVERIES FROM THE WAREHOQUSE Both press articles
and Gorillas own website highlight the use of e-bikes for its delivery from its warehouses to
consumer, but we understand that this is not proposed as a condition for its license - no doubt
because the weight and bulk of alcohol deliveries from the warehouse are likely to reguire
moped/motorcycle couriering or even car couriering. The bulk of these deliveries from the premises
are likely to happen outside of normal working hours and as such would cause substantial public
nuisance for residents.

We note on the proposed plan of the business there is no apparent staff room, courier resting area,
goods pickup stations or e-bike/transport parking. This will likely mean an overflow of couriers and
their transport into the road, causing public nuisance to the residents of Bryan Avenue, Grange
House and others within the Dobree Estate. It is evident that the applicant has not taken the
“reasonable steps to prevent the occurrence of .... public nuisance immediately outside their
premises” and have not “considered the impact [of warehouse staff or couriers] congregating
around entry points to their premises” in-line with Policy 20 on the residents of Bryan Avenue and
the wider area. « PUBLIC NUISANCE FROM DELIVERIES TO THE WAREHOUSE The propoesed
license states no conditions on the times of delivery to the warehouse, again demonstrating that
the licensee has not recognised that this is an entirely residential area. Given the nature of Gorillas
grocery business, we believe the Committee should be made aware of the restrictions on delivery
times that the largest supermarket in Willesden — Sainsbury’s on Willesden High Road — must
abide by to reduce public nuisance to nearby residents. The Committee should also note that
delivery access to Sainsbury’s Willesden High Road solely intended for articulated/goods vehicles
whilst Bryan Avenue is a narrow street with a gradient and resident parking along both sides —
making it unsuitable for large grocery deliveries. Unfortunately, the make-up of Bryan Avenue has
resulted in traffic accidents over the years with the most recent at the start of 2021 with a near fatal
courier moped accident. Gorillas have also already demonstrated complete disregard for residents
and the public nuisance generated from delivery noise in their short time of operating in London,
which is highlighted by deliveries being made to an Islington location from as early as 5am (see
https://democracy.islington.gov. uk/documents/g3888/Public%20reports%20pack%2030th-Mar-

Page 25



2021%2018.30%20Licensing%20Sub%20Committee%20B.pdf?T=10 and reported here:
https:/iwww.islingtongazette.co.uk/news/business/neighbours-hit-by-gorillas-noise-in-angel-
7876198). Their behaviour suggests that they are not suitable licensees and will not be good
neighbours. This is further reflected in their current refurbishment of the property and

determination to commence operations without speaking to or developing a relationship with the
residents of Bryan Avenue and the surrounding streets. «+ PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM
HARM AND PUBLIC SAFETY Due to the quiet nature of Bryan Avenue many parents and their
schoolchildren choose to use it to walk to and from both nurseries, pre-schools and schools around
the local area.

The general public also use Bryan Avenue to walk to and from their day-to-day activities. Having
deliveries to and from the site prior to 8am and after 3pm exponentially increases the risk of a
traffic incident invalving a child not only on this street but in the wider Dobree Estate. As long-term
residents of the Dobree Estate, and now parents to a young child, we still remember the death of a
two-year old in 2007 on Donnington Road, close by to Bryan Avenue, after being struck by a
vehicle.

Gorillas couriers, including those on e-bikes, will considerably increase road traffic and given the
pressure to deliver produce within the companies 10-minute timeframe represent a danger to
children and the public who choose to walk along Bryan Avenue, going against Objective 3
(“Improve the perceived and actual safety and security of pedestrians”) of Brent's Walking Strategy
2017 -2022.

CONCLUSION We therefore strongly recommend that the licensing committee REJECT this
application on the grounds of prevention of public nuisance and safety of children. However, if the
licensing committee is minded to approve the license, they must impose at least the following
conditions in the best interest of the current residents of Bryan Avenue: » A restriction on hours
when deliveries can be made to the site — especially no deliveries in the morning before 9am or
after 6pm during weekdays, with no additional deliveries on weekends. Reduced delivery hours are
a common condition that Brent imposes not just on large supermarkets, but also on smaller
premises such as off-licenses, and we can see absolutely no reason for this to not apply here. * No
deliveries of goods 1o the site by Ordinary Goods Vehicle Class 2 with four or more axles and all
articulated vehicles. As a narrow residential road, the prospect of harm to the public, property
damage and associated fraffic disruption must be removed prior to the licensee undertaking
operations. * Any unloading of goods must occur within the grounds of the property to reduce the
risk of harm to the public and property damage in-line with the above point. « The proposed hours
of licensed operation are excessive and should be curtailed to a more appropriate time given the
site is located on a residential street. » The use of motor vehicle couriers must be restricted or
banned entirely.

Certainly, there should be no motorised (car or motorcycle) couriers before 9am, between 4pm and
6pm or after 9pm and couriers may not be permitted to use Bryan Avenue or the surrounding
Dobree Estate to wait for orders/pick-ups. « Bicycle and E-Bike {and motorcycle if they are
permitted) couriers must carefully choose their routes and should turn right onto Bryan Avenue and
then onto Peter Avenue. Bryan Avenue is not a main road and traffic should use roads which are
more designed for this use. » Couriers must be banned or otherwise discouraged from
congregating outside of the warehouse. For example, the grass outside of Grange House which
backs onto Bryan Avenue is not a public park or amenity. « There must be no noise from the
couriers after 9pm. Gorillas should commit to cleaning the environs of cigarette butts and other
detritus that arise from their operations. * The warehouse premises themselves have roller
shutters, metal door and heavy metal gates. A specific condition must be applied to make Gorillas
take action to silence the noise especially if licensed activity is to be allowed into the evening. -
The process of lock-up and openingup must be silent. If the license is granted to midnight - lock-up
of the premises is going to occur well after midnight. The manager involved must themselves abide
by the conditions for couriers above.

We understand Gorillas may complain that this objection is a form of nimbysim and that we are
looking to stop any usage of the property. That cannot be further from the case. During the COVID-
19 pandemic, we -like many others- have relied heavily on grocery delivery services and
understand why this is an expanding and heavily contested market. However, Gorilla’s choice of
location within a residential area rather than an industrial estate should be seriously reviewed by
the Licensing Committee given the underlining threat of the increase in public nuisance not just to

Page 26



Page 27



Public Nuisance — Operating Practices: The Gorillas website states it undertakes deliveries using
ebikes, But there is no licence condition for this operating practice. So, there is a real risk that more
noisy and polluting forms of vehicles will be used. This is a major concern given that the demand
for their services will come in the evening so accentuating the public nuisance. The business has
not explained what toilet and restrcom facilities will be provided for their workers. The local
community must have assurances that these will be made available on-site to stop workers from
using the surrounding public spaces for these activities. Public Safety Concerns — Traffic: Bryan
Avenue is a very narrow street with resident parking along most of it. Plus, there is a slope and
several blind spots. All these factors have resulted in numerous car scrapes and accidents over the
years. The most recent took place at the start of 2021 and ironically involved a near fatal delivery
bike crash. To increase the amount of traffic would be dangerous and physically there is no space
for delivery vehicles/bikes to park safely. Parking available for residents is already limited and this
proposal will make this even more constrained. If the hours of operation coincided with schools,
there would be the additional risk to children walking to and from school. Public Safety Concerns —
Crime: The licence will mean that high value goods such as alcohol will be kept on site. This will
increase the risk of burglaries. Public Safety Concerns — Litter, Rubbish, Pollution and Noise: The
business will increase litter, rubbish, pollution and noise on Bryan Avenue and the local area. This
is due to the vastly higher usage of the street by an activity that it is not designed for. At present,
there are no public bins installed in the street to deal with this litter. The noise created by the
business is the biggest concern, especially given the proposed hours. Better Local Options: In
conclusion, the local area has several far more suitable sites for this licensed business. If this
business was in a place zoned for light industrial or warehousing, all my objections would be
redundant. But, as described, Bryan Avenue is a narrow street in a very quiet residential area. This
proposal therefore would do significant and lasting damage to people’s lives and so must be
rejected.

Resident Rep 29

08-04-21

About Bryan Avenue, the local area and its residents and why | strongly

oppose granting a license for Gorillas Inc. for 113 Bryan Avenue:

I have lived in Bryan Avenue since 2006. The Avenue is a very quiet and narrow residential
street. It is home to many families with children and elderly residents. Due to the internal
layouts most homes on the Avenue have street facing bedrooms. The Avenue sits within an
ADRC (Area of Distinctive Residential Character). In the very immediate area is a large
Cathaolic Church and an Islamic College.

Considering the character of the local area and for the reasons outlined in my submission
below, | strongly oppose granting a license for Gorillas Inc. for 113 Bryan Avenue. This
outcome would negatively impact on the community living in the neighbourhood. Also,
importantly, the proposed hours of operation (e.g., significantly after 5pm and at weekends),
changes the nature of the use of the premise and is totally different for what has previously
been allowed.

Change of Usage Significantly Differs From Original:

Previous businesses using 113 Bryan Avenue have operated 8am to 6pm on weekdays and
not on weekends, apart from one business that had some limited activity on Saturday
mornings. Also, none of these businesses had any connection with alcohol. To accept this
proposal would change the nature of usage which greatly differs to what has been allowed to
date. Presumably the operating hours in use historically and up until now were implemented
to respect that this is a residential area.

Public Nuisance - Extended Operational Hours and Deliveries:

The proposal is for operating hours from 8am to midnight seven days a week. In reality, the
business would be opening and closing well outside these already anti-social hours in a
residential area.

The licence application does not specify what times deliveries can take place. So big delivery
trucks could descend upon the street at any time.

Public Nuisance — Operating Practices:

The Gorillas website states it undertakes deliveries using e-bikes. But there is no licence
condition for this operating practice. So, there is a real risk that more noisy and polluting forms

Page 28



of vehicles will be used. This is a major concern given that the demand for their services will
come in the evening so accentuating the public nuisance, The business has not explained
what toilet and rest room facilities will be provided for their workers. The local community must
have assurances that these will be made available on-site to stop workers from using the
surrounding public spaces for these activities.

Public Safety Concerns — Traffic:

Bryan Avenue is a very narrow street with resident parking along most of it. Plus, there is a
slope and several blind spots. All these factors have resulted in numerous car scrapes and
accidents over the years. The most recent took place at the start of 2021 and ironically involved
a near fatal delivery bike crash.

To increase the amount of traffic would be dangerous and physically there is no space for
delivery vehicles/bikes to park safely. Parking available for residents is already limited and this
proposal will make this even more constrained.

If the hours of operation coincided with schools, there would be the additional risk to children
walking to and from school.

Has the Council conducted a traffic impact study to assess all these risks?

Public Safety Concerns — Crime:

The licence will mean that high value goods such as alcohol will be kept on site. This will
increase the risk of burglaries.

Public Safety Concerns — Litter, Rubbish, Poliution and Noise:

The business will increase litter, rubhish, pollution and noise on Bryan Avenue and the local
area. This is due to the vastly higher usage of the street by an activity that it is not designed
for. At present, there are no public bins installed in the street to deal with this litter. The noise
created by the business is the biggest concern, especially given the proposed hours.

Better Local Options:

In conclusion, the local area has several far more suitable sites for this licensed business. If
this business was in a place zoned for light industrial or warehousing, all my objections would
be redundant. BUT, as described, Bryan Avenue is a narrow street in a very quiet residential
area. This proposal therefore would do significant and lasting damage to people’s lives and

so must be rejected.

Resident Rep 31

12-04-21

About Bryan Avenue and the local area and why | oppose granting a license for Gorillas Inc. for
113Bryan Avenue: | have lived in Bryan Avenue since 2001. The Avenue is a very quiet and
nairow residential street with many families with children living here plus there are elderly
residents. Due to the internal layouts most houses on the Avenue have street facing bedrooms.
The Avenue sits within an ADRC {Area of Distinctive Residential Character). In the immediate area
is a Catholic Church and an Istamic College. For the reasons outlined in my submission, | strongly
oppose granting a license for Gorillas Inc. for 113 Bryan Avenue since it would significantly
negatively impact on the community living in the Avenue and the local area. Plus, this proposal is
totally out of character for what has previously been allowed. Public Nuisance - Extended
Operational Hours and Deliveries: The proposal is for operating hours from 8am to midnight seven
days a week. The reality is that the business would be opening and closing well outside these
already anti-social hours for a residential area. The licence application does not specify what times
deliveries can take place. So big delivery trucks could descend upon the street at any time. Public
Nuisance — Operating Practices: The Gorillas website states it undertakes deliveries using e-bikes.
But there is no licence condition for this operating practice. So there is a potential risk that more
noisy and polluting forms of vehicles will be used. This is a real concern given that the main
demand for their services will come in the evening so exasperating the public nuisance. The
business has not explained what toilets and rest room faciiities will be provided for workers. The
local community must have assurances that these will be made available to avoid the workers
using the surrounding public street for these activities. Public Safety Concerns — Traffic: Bryan
Avenue is a very narrow street with resident parking along most of it. Plus, there is a slope and
several blind spots. All these factors have resulted in numerous accidents over the years. The
most recent took place at the start of 2021 and ironically involved a near fatal delivery

bike crash. The width of the street has also led to numerous cars being scraped. To increase the

Page 29



amount of traffic would be dangerous and physically there is not much space for delivery vehicles
to park safely. Parking available for residents is already limited and this proposal will make it even
more difficult for residents to park. If the hours of operation coincided with schools, there would be
the added risk to children walking to and from school. Has the Council conducted a traffic impact
study to assess all these risks? Public Safety Concerns — Crime: The licence will mean that high
value goods such as alcohol will be kept on site. This will increase the risk of burglaries. Public
Safety Concerns — Litter, Rubbish, Pollution and Noise: The business will increase litter, rubbish,
pollution and noise on Bryan Avenue and the local area. This is due to the vastly higher usage of
the street by an activity that it is not designed for. Out of Character: Previous businesses using 113
Bryan Avenue have operated 8am to 6pm on weekdays and not on weekends, apart from one
business that had some limited activity on Saturday mornings. Also, none of these businesses had
any connection with alcohol. To change its usage now is out of character to what has previously
been undertaken. Better Local Options: The local area has several far more suitable sites for a
licensed business. If this business was in a place zoned for light industrial or warehousing, many of
my objections would be redundant. BUT, as described, Bryan Avenue is very residential area, and
this proposal would do significant and lasting damage to people’s lives.

Resident Rep 32

12-04-21

1) Prevention of Crime and Disorder While the applicant has currently no intention of having
customers coming to the premises to collect their orders for off licence alcohol there is nothing to
prevent them allowing customer collections in the future. The premises is located in the midst of a
residential area and as such is unsuitable for such business. The fact that alcohol is being stored
at the premises will attract a criminal element and put not only the premises at higher risk of
robbery but also increase the risk for the surrounding area. 2) Public nuisance is a common law
offence involving environmental danger or loss of amenity or offensive public behaviour. Should
collections by customers be allowed there is a distinct possibility of those customers then
consuming that alcohol near the premises and thus causing public nuisance and anti-social
behaviour. In addition the extra traffic both from the collection of orders from the site and from
deliveries being made to the premises with by its nature of excessive traffic and noise cause a loss
of amenity to the local population, especially in light of the fact that they are looking to be open
from 8am to Midnight, 7 days a week. While most people come to expect some disturbance during
normal working hours, it is unfair to expect people to put up with such disturbance until Midnight
and beyond, for although the deliveries will stop at Midnight, there will be other traffic and noise
after that time as the premises is closed, possibly cleaned and secured. 3) Public Safety: The
location of the site on Bryan Avenue means that any extra traffic is likely to cause a danger to both
road users and pedestrians. Bryan Avenue is a narrow two-way road, where currently it is difficult
for 2 cars to pass. Both sides of the road have residents parking provided and the extra traffic
caused by this will no doubt cause an increase in pollution due to the increased traffic and the
delays and hold ups that the narrowness of the road will cause 4) Prevention of Children from
Harm: As in the case of Ella Adoo-Kissi-Debrah, there will be the added risk to the health and
wellbeing of the local population and especially children, cause by the increase in traffic and
pollution. While Many of the vehicles maybe electric, there is no guarantee of this, and the increase
in slow and stationary traffic will add to the air pollution in the area and increase the risk of pollution
related deaths.

Resident Rep 33

13-04-21

This is a completely unsuitable premises for this company. Bryan Avenue is a residential street
with fimited parking and with bedrooms that face onto the road. The hours of operation will
significantly impact the quality of life of residents. Bryan Avenue is a road with a sharp bend and
there have been accidents. This will increase hugely with the coming and going of delivery drivers
from 0800 - midnight making it less safe for residents. There will be an increase in anti social
behaviour as inevitably delivery drivers will be waiting around for extended periods of time. This
property has historically been used for storage and during office hours only and the applicant
seeks to change thiscompletely. The negative impact on residents cannot be overstated.

Page 30



Resident Rep 35

13-04-21

| object for the following reasons: « Bryan Avenue is a quiet, residential street not suited to a
business of this nature = The proposed hours of operation are excessive and would cause
considerable noise disruption for the residents on the street « There will be a considerable impact
on pollution and air quality on the street due to a drastic increase in traffic « The proposed usage is
out of character with previous uses, and should therefore be subject to obtaining permission for a
change of use » There are many more suitable options in the local area away from residential
areas.

Resident Rep 36

13-04-21

Hi, 'm concerned regarding nuisance from the couriers and deliveries, littering, ong hours of
operation, increased risk of traffic accidents. Bryan Avenue is a residential street with most
bedrooms facing the street. The past 6pm license would really affect us residents. please take this
into consideration.

Resident Rep 37

13-04-21

An application licence has been submitted for the premises of 113 Bryan Avenue, being used for
business activities which are going to have a significant, lasting and negative impact on this quiet
and narrow residential road and surrounding roads. The application submitted has been made to
request to operate during unsociable hours up until midnight, 7 days a week, including Bank
Holidays. This is an unacceptable request on a quiet residential road, with front facing bedrooms
which will contribute to noise with operational noise, noise of deliveries, resulting to people’s sleep
being disturbed. We have a lot of families with small children and to disturb their sleep is
unacceptable.

This Warehouse (113 Bryan Avenue) is on a bendy road, so if deliveries are operating all these
long hours this is going to cause traffic building up meaning that cars coming down from the hill will
not be able to get past if the deliveries are going to be coming and going. This will result to
disruption being caused, not to mention the noise of car, motorbike, lorries etc noise with engines
being on, again causing noise and disturbance to all the residents on this street and surrounding
streets. | strongly disapprove of this application being granted and | ask that my email is carefully
taken into consideration and that this application is not approved. It is unfair to all the residents,
families and children that live on this road and surrounding roads. This will cause major disruption
on a close and quiet neighbourhood.

Resident Rep 39

14-04-21

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder — With alcohol being stored in the warehouse on a quiet
residential street the risk of break-ins are increased. During the pandemic several retail
establishments in the area have had people coming in and stealing alcohol. Bryan Avenue has
also had spates of break-ins over the years and we do not need a crime magnet in the area. Public
Safety — Bryan Avenue is a narrow street with a blind curve % of the way up with cars regularly
parked on both sides all along its fength. The influx of delivery drivers/riders rushing up and down
the road is very likely to end in an accident for either a driver or a local pedestrian. At 11pm on
March 8th a delivery driver was in a life altering accident (we do not know if they survived) right
around the area of the curve. 11pm is within the requested operation hours of the license so with
more and more delivery persons zooming up the hill this sort of accident will only increase. The
prevention of Public Nuisance — Bryan Avenue is a quiet road where due to the layout of the
buildings most of the resident’'s bedrooms face the street. The hours of operation associated with
the license request are entirely out of keeping with any business that has been in residence
previously (the proposed hours of operation are 8am — 12am, 7 days a week). These hours,
especially when combined with the lack of provision for couriers on the warehouse ground plan will
lead to disturbance throughout the evening/night as the couriers arrive and depart or loiter waiting
for their next callout. Bryan Avenue does not have a provision for public bins and the garden next
to the warehouse is meant to be for

Page 31



the residents of Grange House so any littering or congregation workers will have additional
disruptive impact. We are not aware if the business has restroom and toilets to drivers and
concerned how this will impact on residents.

Resident Rep 40

15-04-21

| have been a resident of Bryan Avenue since June 2001.

You will see, from the many objections already received by yourselves, how much distress
this licence application is causing to the residents of Bryan Avenue and nearby
neighbours.

I am writing to express my own strong objections on the following counts:

PREVENTION OF CRIME & DISORDER

Alcohol is an expensive stock item. It is likely to draw the attention of criminals. The risk of
break-ins is huge. We abhor the idea of having a crime magnet on our peaceful road.
When | say 'we', | include all those | spoke to, individually, when knocking door-to-door to
collect signatures for our petition. It is important to note that the Application notice put up
by Gorillas (on the front gate of the warehouse) was woefully vague, leaving many
residents in the dark about what was actually being proposed.

PUBLIC SAFETY

Bryan Avenue is a narrow road with cars generally parked on both sides. There is a blind
curve and over the years there have been many incidents of damage to cars and even
demolished front garden walls due to speeding and careless drivers. A much more serious
example of risk is that of a delivery driver who crashed his vehicle and is understood to
have sustained serious head injuries. This happened at 11pm on March 8th THIS YEAR.
We are sadly not sure if the young man survived.

With a ten-minute promise of delivery made by 'Gorillas', it is not just a worry that large
numbers of courier drivers will be rushing up and down Bryan Avenue - IT IS A GIVEN.
PUBLIC NUISANCE

How can the upheaval {o residents caused by this business not be considered a public
nuisance? Our peace and quiet will be shattered, for a proposed 16 HOURS PER DAY, 7
DAYS PER WEEK. On this quiet, residential road! Besides delivery lorries and the early
maorning and very late night opening and closing of METAL SHUTTERS & METAL
GATES, can there be any expectation that the couriers will be quiet whilst

congregating? Hardly!

PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM

| am hugely concerned for children's safety due to increased traffic to and from this
warehouse. The pavements are narrow, many children walk to local schools (of which
there are many). A ten-minute delivery promise to customers will undoubtedly place a
sense of urgency on drivers. An urgency that will inevitably lead to an unacceptable risk of
harm to child pedestrians.

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

| understand that up to this late stage, the Business Licence Committee has not asked the
opinion of the Council officer in charge of anti-social behaviour. | understand that Brent
Council is aware of anti-social behaviour among delivery drivers in the Borough of

Brent. This may have to be tolerated by Brent residents who unfortunately live beside busy
delivery outlets next to shops and busy Brent streets. Bryan Avenue does not fall into this
category. Bryan Avenue residents will not tolerate anti-social behaviour on our much
valued peaceful and harmonious road.

Thank you for your considerations.

Page 32



Resident Rep 41 — see separate letter

Resident Rep 42

15-04-21

Objections: Prevention of Public nuisance; Public safety The licence, if granted, would be
likely to lead to a considerable increase in commercial traffic (delivery vehicles: vans and
mopeds) in what is otherwise a quiet area mainly consisting of domestic dwellings. This
would represent a risk to pedestrians - particularly children and other vulnerable residents.
It would also represent a nuisance in terms of volume of traffic activity and noise —
particularly at night.

Resident Rep 43

15-04-21

This is a school area and very residential. | object based on the prevention of harm to
children through what is already a dangerous area with homeless and alcoholic people
roaming the area and also avoiding public nuisance.

Resident Rep 44

15-04-21

Public nuisance - delivery vehicles constantly coming and going in a densely populated
residential area is not appropriate.

Resident Rep 45

15-04-21

This will be a hot bed for crime due to the hours kept. The noise and the parking of
delivery vehicles will impact on residents in the area as parking spaces are premium. More
possibilities of children being put in danger from high increase of traffic & heavy goods
vehicles in a residential area. This is not suitable for a residential area and but a more
suitable business for a trading estate of which there are many in the area that can handle
this kind of disruption 7 days a week for 14 hours a day.

Resident Rep 46

15-04-21 R

This is a quiet residential area close to a local park. The warehouse is across the road
from our church, where quiet prayer is held alongside church services. The warehouse
would have constant traffic from delivery vehicles (lorries and bikes), 7 days a week, 16
hours a day, resulting in air poliution, noise pollution, public safety issues and causing a
danger to children walking to and from the local park, school and church.

Resident Rep 47

15-04-21

This is in the heart of a residential area, totally unsuitable for the proposed purposes.
There is a church, schools and a park nearby, so children would be endangered by all the
extra delivery traffic, inbound and outbound, 7 days a week. Additionally the nearby main
road (Harlesden Road) is already congested and has problems with vehicles speeding.
This proposal is completely unsuitable and unacceptable.

Page 33



Resident Rep 48

15-04-21

| object to have a commercial building in a purely residential area running a business
associated with alcohol through antisocial hours. It is also very close to our church and
truly feel that the proposed use of these premises is really not in keeping with the area

Resident Rep 49

15-04-21

I think it is absurd that a warehouse would be positioned in such a quiet residential area.
This seems crazy and will cause noise, traffic, deliveries during all hours and antisocial
hours.

Resident Rep 50

15-04-21

As you will be aware, local residents recently became aware of a licensing application
submitted by Gorilla Inc with regard to 113 Avenue. In addition to the liquor license being
inherently inappropriate in the circumstance, the application has also brought to light a raft
of other associated issues.It is my understanding that Planning have a role as statutory
consultees, to the licensing application. Given that a successful licensing application would
effectively authorise a change of use that should require planning permission, could you
please raise an objection by the end of this week 16 April 2021. 113 Bryan avenue
NW102AS has planning permission as Class B8 Storage. The site was previously used by
Brent Council to house medical equipment. For decades, the site has not been used
outside normal office / warehouse hours ie. 8am to 6pm weekdays, with some minimal use
on Saturday mornings and no use at all on Sundays. The application for the liquor license
cites operating hours of 8am to Midnight 7 days a week. Delivery vehicles and couriers will
be continually coming and going. This amounts to a change of use of the premises. In
addtion, it is likely that some level of retail activity / pick up will occur. 113 Bryan avenue is
Jocated in a quiet residential street, and is surrounded by houses with bedrooms facing the
street. Granting a license to enable an enterprise of this nature, which is entirely out of
keeping with the area, will severely and detrimentally impact the lives, privacy, comfort and
common rights of the residents of Bryan Avenue and the whole Dobree Estate. There are
any number of more suitable sites available locally for a licensed business, especially
given the large number of failed businesses / empty commercial sites due to the pandemic
etc. There are a number of light industrial estates locally with vacancies, Park Royal is not
far away, the local High Roads, in serious need of revitalisation and rejuvenation have
many vacant shops and premises. There are a number of closed and boarded up pubs
locally etc. Please note that this licensing application and Gorillas change of use plans are
causing widespread concern and alarm in our community, as illustrated by the cc list
above. Two local counsellors are also involved. The actual numbers of impacted and
concerned residents is however understated. Many residents are elderly, not proficient
with computers or speak English as a second language and are not comfortable in writing
emails or lodging representations. A petition has additionally been circulated and
submitted. Given the situation could you please look into this matter as a matter of
urgency.

Page 34



Resident Rep 51

15-04-21

My husband and | object as we live around the corner on | EEEEEE 2nd are concerned
as it's a residential area and a warehouse has no place here. The increased traffic with
deliveries and collections could be a public nuisance and a danger to pedestrians in the
vicinity. There will also be an increase in noise,

Resident Rep 52

15-04-21

Change of Usage Significantly Differs From Original: Previous businesses using 113 Bryan
Avenue have operated 8am to 6pm on weekdays and not on weekends, apart from one
business that had some limited activity on Saturday mornings. Also, none of these
businesses had any connection with alcohol. To accept this proposal would change the
nature of usage which greatly differs to what has been allowed to date. Presumably the
operating hours in use historically and up until now were implemented in consideration of
the residential character of the area. Public Nuisance - Extended Operational Hours and
Deliveries: The proposal is for operating hours from 8am to midnight seven days a week.
in reality, the business would be opening and closing well outside these already anti-social
hours in a residential area. The licence application does not specify what times deliveries
by big lorries to the warehouse can take place. So big delivery trucks could descend upon
the street at any time. Public Nuisance — Operating Practices: The Gorillas website states
it undertakes deliveries using e-bikes. But there is no licence condition for this operating
practice. So, there is a real risk that more noisy and polluting forms of vehicles will be
used. This is a major concern given that the demand for their services will come in the
evening so accentuating the public nuisance. The business has not explained what toilet
and restroom facilities will be provided for their workers. The local community must have
assurances that these will be made available on-site to stop workers from using the
surrounding public spaces instead of actual toilet facilities inside the

warehouse. Public Safety Concerns — Traffic: Bryan Avenue is a very narrow street with
resident parking on both sides of the street. Plus, there is a slope and several blind spots.
All these factors have resulted in numerous car scrapes and terrible accidents over the
years. The most recent took place at the start of 2021 and ironically involved a near fatal
delivery bike crash. To increase the amount of traffic would be dangerous and physically
there is no space for delivery vehicles/bikes to park safely. Parking available for residents
is already limited and this proposal will make this even more constrained. If the hours of
operation coincided with schools, there would be the additional risk to children walking to
and from school.

Public Safety Concerns — Crime: The licence will mean that high value goods such as
alcohol will be kept on site. This will increase the risk of burglaries. Moreover, as the e-
bikers are leaving the area, it is possible that they would come under attack by individuals
who might want to rob them of whatever alcoholic beverage they are taking to their
customers. Public Safety Concerns — Litter, Rubbish, Pollution and Noise: The business
will increase litter, rubbish, pollution and noise on Bryan Avenue and the local area. This is
due to the vastly higher usage of the street by an activity that it is not designed for. At
present, there are no public bins installed in the street to deal with this litter. The noise
created by the business is the biggest concern, especially given the proposed odd hours.
Better Local Options: In conclusion, the local area has several far more suitable sites for
this licensed business. If this business was in a place zoned for light industrial or
warehousing, all my objections wouid be redundant. But, as described, Bryan Avenue is a
narrow street in a very quiet residential area

Page 35



with all the bedrooms of the marionettes facing the street. This proposal therefore would
do significant and lasting damage to people’s lives and will affect the quality of their life.
Hence, it must be rejected.

Resident Rep 53

16-04-21

This objection is being raised under the Prevention of Public Nuisance. A utility which
keeps such unsociable hours is completely unacceptable in a residential area.
Furthermore, the anticipated increase in traffic over those hours make this a potential
increased pollution issue.

Resident Rep 54

16-04-21

I worry that the crime rate will go up when people know that alcohol is stored on the
premises and the traffic will cause problems like parking and crossing safely especially as
we are a family community and have our children crossing roads on the way to school etc,
and we really struggle for parking so if there are more vehicles local residents will find it
difficult to park.

Resident Rep 55

16-04-21

| am dismayed that the council has allowed this proposal instead of, for example, using the
space to build a school or playground- both are much needed in the community. | object in
the grounds of public safety and prevention of children from harm (increased traffic risks
and pollution)

Resident Rep 56

16-04-21

Bryan Avenue is a peaceful residential street with flats and houses, mostly occupied with
families with young children. This application will cause immense disruption and noise
pollution in the whole area. The application states that service will run from 0800hrs to
0000hrs 7 days a week therefore: | STRONGLY OBJECT to this application on the
following grounds. Public Safety | understand that the warehouse will be stocked with a
high volume of alcohol. The area is wholly residential and families with young children from
different backgrounds celebrate 5 November, New Year's Eve. Diwali and Chinese New
Year with firework displays in their gardens. Most gardens from Peters Avenue back onto
the warehouse. This would cause total mayhem if a firework were to go astray near the
warehouse. The warehouse is also located extremely close (10m) to an Electrical Housing
and within a 100m of a place of worship. Prevention of Public Nuisance — Prevention of
Children from Harm - Noise The whole area is highly residential. There are no other shops
(apart from a family Pub which the warehouse backs onto) within a 200m radius. The
impact of lorries trying to find parking to restock the warehouse whilst people are trying to
sleep will be beyond an acceptable level. Workers will be arriving early for work and
finishing late, that together with the hard wheel trollies from deliveries will create a
constant noise earlier than the stated 0800 opening and later than the 0000hrs closing 7
days a week. Couriers coming and going throughout the extended hours will increase
traffic problems and present an additional danger to public safety. Gorilla have a 10 minute
PROMISE for delivery so it is GURANTEED that there will be a significant increase of
traffic on Bryan Avenue and the surrounding area with couriers RUSHING to Collect the
order. The bottom part of Bryan

Page 36



Avenue has a bend and an incline, and vehicles passing each other always exercise
additional care to avoid collision. Due to street parking on both sides, the space for puiling
in towards the curb is limited this will significantly increase the risk of traffic accidents.
Collection ofbusiness/commercial waste. More lorries endlessly collecting
business/commercial waste on an already narrow road, this will considerably add to the
increased traffic flow of the deliveries, couriers, and cause obstruction on the pavement.
All other delivery businesses are located on the High Street, where there are appropriate
facilities: daily cleaning, public litter bins, traffic regulations and regular policing. Prevention
of Crime & Disorder The Prevention of Crime and Disorder - With alcohol being stored in
the warehouse on a quiet residential street the risk of burglary and theft is drastically
increased. Thieves have robbed several retail establishments in the area however they
only stock a reasonable amount of alcohol. Bryan Avenue has also had series of break-in
over the years, we do not need a crime magnet to attract delinquency to the area. L.ocation
We already have a high street that is crying for business and an industrial estate in Park
Rovyal that needs to be filled. The Government is encouraging us to support out local
businesses, the opening of this type of activity on a residential street will have a negative
economic impact on our local traders and leave commercial premises empty. Finally One
policy from The Licensing ACT 2003: Encourage greater community involvement in
licensing decisions and giving local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding
licensing decisions that may impact upon them. IS ANYBODY LISTENING? DOES
ANYBODY REALLY CARE?

Resident Rep 57

16-04-21

Residential area, there will be deliveries at unsociable hours and increased traffic due to
deliveries.

Resident Rep 58

16-04-21

Bryan Avenue is a peaceful residential street with flats and houses, mostly occupied by
families with young children. This application will cause immense disruption and noise
pollution in the whole area. The application states that service will run from 0800hrs to
0000hrs 7 days a week, therefore: | STRONGLY OBJECT to this application on the
following grounds. Public Safety [ understand that the warehouse will be stocked with a
high volume of alcohol. The area is wholly residential, and families with young children
from different backgrounds celebrate 5 November, New Year's Eve. Diwali and Chinese
New Year with firework displays in their gardens. Most gardens from Peters Avenue back
onto the warehouse. This would cause total mayhem if a firework were to go astray near
the warehouse. The warehouse is located extremely close (10m) to an Electrical Housing
and within 100m from two places of worship, a day nursery and a college. Prevention of
Public Nuisance — Prevention of Children from Harm - Noise The whole area is highly
residential.

There are no other shops (apart from a family Pub which the warehouse backs onto) within
a 200m radius. The impact of lorries trying to find parking to restock the warehouse whilst
people are trying to sleep will be beyond an acceptable level. Workers will undoubtedly
arrive early for work and finishing late, that together with the hard wheel trollies from
deliveries, will create a constant noise earlier than the stated 0800 opening and later than
the 000Chrs closing 7 days a week. Couriers coming and going throughout the extended
hours will increase traffic problems and present an additional danger to public safety.
Gorilla has a 10-minute PROMISE for delivery, it is GUARANTEED that there wilt be a
significant

Page 37



increase of traffic on Bryan Avenue and the surrounding area with couriers RUSHING to
Collect the order. The bottom part of Bryan Avenue has a bend and an incline, and
vehicles passing each other always exercise additional care to avoid a collision. Due to
street parking on both sides, the space for pulling in towards the curb is limited: this will
significantly increase the risk of traffic accidents. Collection of business/commercial waste.
More lorries endlessly collecting business/commercial waste on an already narrow road,
this will considerably add to the increased traffic flow of the deliveries, couriers and cause
obstruction on the pavement. All other delivery businesses are located on the High Street,
where there are appropriate facilities: daily cleaning, public litter bins, traffic regulations
and regular policing. Prevention of Crime & Disorder The Prevention of Crime and
Disorder — With alcohol being stored in the warehouse on a quiet residential street, the risk
of burglary and theft is drastically increased. Thieves have robbed several retail
establishments in the area however they only stock a reasonable amount of alcohol. Bryan
Avenue has also had series of break-ins over the years. We do not need a crime magnet
to attract delinquency to the area. Location We already have a high street that is crying for
business and an industrial estate in Park Royal that needs to be filled. The Government is
encouraging us to support local businesses. The apening of this type of activity on a
residential street will negatively impact our local traders and leave commercial premises
empty. Finally One policy from The Licensing ACT 2003: Encourage greater community
involvement in licensing decisions and giving local residents the opportunity to have their
say regarding licensing decisions that may impact upon them.

Resident Rep 59

16-04-21

Bryan Avenue is a narrow street with a blind curve % of the way up with cars regularly parked on
both sides all along its length throughout the day. The influx of delivery trucks, but also of
drivers/riders rushing up and down the road is very likely to end in an accident for either a driver or
a local pedestrian. The "10 minutes delivery promise’ of Goriltas is simply a call for speed on behalf
of the delivery riders, and Bryan avenue / the Dobree estate do not have streets wide enough for
those riders to drive safely around. Furthermore, Bryan Avenue is a quiet road where due to the
layout of the buildings most of the resident’s bedrooms face the street. The hours of operation
associated with the license request are entirely out of keeping with any business that has been in
residence previously (the proposed hours of operation are 8am — 12am, 7 days a week). These
hours, especially when combined with the lack of provision for couriers on the warehouse ground
plan will lead to disturbance throughout the evening/night as the couriers arrive and depart or loiter
waiting for their next callout. Bryan Avenue does not have a provision for public bins and the
garden next to the warehouse is meant to be for the residents of Grange House so any littering or
congregation workers will have additional disruptive impact. We are not aware if the business has
restroom and toilets to drivers and concerned how this will impact on residents.

Resident Rep 60 — see separate letter

Page 38



Brent Council Regulatory Services
Regeneration and Growth
Brent Civic Centre

Engineers Way -7
Wembley
HAS OFJ um“%
" .
PO C * ; 8" April 2021

Objection to Application for a Premises Licence
To Whom It May Concern:

| am objecting to the application for a premises licence made by Gorillas Technologies Ltd
for 113 Bryan Avenue London NW10 2A5.

This licence would include the supply of alcohol every day from 08:00 to 00:00 as part of a
delivery sarvice.

My main objectian is that this is a quiet residential neighbourhoad and that the extra traffic
from the delivery trucks and motorbikes, vans etc would significantly add to the air and
noise pollution for the many families who live here potentially destroying the peace and
tranquillity of the area. The families and individuals that have moved here did s0 in the
understanding that this area is, and always has been, residential.

The idea that delivery vans/trucks/motorbikes run continually through the day from 8am till
midnight is unacceptable. The roads are not made for this increased traffic. It was only 1
month ago when a moped (delivery) driver crashed outside my house seriously injuring
himself in the process — ambulance required. The road is narrow, on a hill with a noticeable
bend with few places for cars to get past. The increase in traffic will make this quiet
residential road less safe,

Please DO NOT agree to this application request for a premises licence on Bryan Avenue.
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours Sincerely,

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Received

12 APR gy
DIGITAL ’;QSTHOOM

———

Wi

Re' licongs P\“J.-Q\é‘.m('{nv\ Nuwbeg 8RS, 13 &Qﬂam Aoe, potato 2RSS,

5 wnle s an o ocupue onct v [l

e E&R‘&(‘LV\ Ave. Swce “may, 9 5"?\0#\(:6@3 opposa ﬁh’\a.v\.ﬁm% a fRewnses Liconss To
ot s Tﬂ,&n.ueoﬁ.m 1o ‘%cﬂ' H."" Ry Ave. Thia o o ™ wl Aegidentiol  Alaset, Ta

hanaeksr (5&, Yoo Slaek would "’Q"'D'“E;'Q' ’f’)wm PQ‘QC‘%&‘ o nD\&LI gl ckmmdat’\ous “%f’\_ﬁ)m
YW Craagnd. N%E\‘c. ond. &c,’(\'v‘]ftq.

Pea 4 Le.ms:1V\2\ O%&:UL({

Prevawtion cg Pulilic Nursance

cLusool Moans Hera S0 Je Conslint

i, Q{Q‘?’Rm\‘{\.ﬁ_‘\ Dsurs 2pm Yo Mmc\n\ﬁ“’ Assen oot s w&(&m—'

o ¢ - . 4 4 0.0
oy el Ay wolousa Bxg TRule awdh \Jns MAU..\M_‘% deivaris . .
Geaalll yand. &8 wac 0. s‘ﬁnf’?lm on e ahael onde e aatiling 6\- crabis ond ellio

2 - S : b o o daly RuUiCL | So
Wil e incegsank, Toha ,Q\u.ws‘mf\ ap f)-(’.tc:n.\'x'ovt Relao Ur 1o for c% daliuory 3o »
Ao odor goeds defliusrad. to twe wawhowse il odd bo Bus omol taaly %m.{ha_ pacblows
5% Qolae omde NUisomes . OO0 Bug Luiennss ool Cuasde o fat ol wiaole, -%\.c:w\ Crabin avach
?M.uquxnci ol Supme WO Sone To Jon (olleclact and. dﬁ,"o&‘.&o‘ Q&.

Puivir:c Sote b
ckm\rao/\bus: Otgh. Menznte PUP.Qu,\“\on Bauals,

Own Mewase i TRa@hic vl wmolo Hhe shask moe ) "
ke , Lo, - Glkgs ool motoreyclis Nouaing of speod WUER K. o C\M%ﬁq 1&
cDBdnan amd. B &inm_ﬂ.:) " .iwﬁﬁ ceose Py acad . flo doult Wa Rudets w

Y R\A\\\S o a “\‘\%ﬁ\\' schodula udlow m;k;a& Aelivanios

Corwclusion c{lww&s

. ’ Vo bl U?w
A e W’SQ Agtopmond Yea fQ*('—f-’MSMS comr'tilon M\)*“‘r tha pppicalion on
ak pobtic MUisanm osd. '?;\n.%d“&.

\)homt.s ¥ ckiw‘“ﬁ*%‘ﬂ%u

I

Page 41




This page is intentionally left blank



Gorillas - Councillor Reps Nos. 34 & 38

Councillor Erica Gbajumo
Brent Civic Centre
14-04-21

| write in relation of the license application for 113 Bryan Avenue to run an alcohol delivery service.

As I'm sure you’re aware, the building currently operates as a warehouse storage facility, operating
during the daytime. However, this new application to operate as a takeaway delivery service of
alcohol raises serious questions as to whether such use would constitute a change of use and thus
require planning permission to operate as a commercial enterprise from 8am - 00.00 am.

In addition, the hours of use are completely inappropriate. The current storage unit is located on a
quite residential street. Allowing this business to run an alcohol delivery service on a residential
street from 8.00 - 00.00 7 days a week will ruin the quite atmosphere enjoyed by the residents due
to vehicles driving up and down at speed, with the likelihood of customers gathering around the
business to try and grab their order as soon as possible.

This will undoubtedly cause a public nuisance, with the inevitable disturbance from intoxicated
customers late into the night. | therefore object to 113 Bryan Avenue’s application to operate an
alcohol delivery service on this very quite residential street. It has no business operating such a
service on this street and such a service should be confined to a more suitable high street location
with restricted times at the very least.

Cllr Tony Ethapemi
Brent Civic Centre
13-04-21

Such commercial enterprise should not be on a residential. Street. The environmental and anti-
social problem would be exacerbated.

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



ADDITIONAL PHOTOS FROM RESIDENT REP 20
Please can you add the following photos to the evidence pack:

Photo 1

This photo shows how narrow the street is an how one delivery vehicle or car blocks access

The increased traffic from the proposed licence is a nuisance and danger due to accidents

The business will increase the amount of delivery vehicles on a street that is not designed for this
activity

Photo2
This photo shows how residential the street is. Most of the rooms facing the street are bedrooms —
so all the residents will be negatively impacted by activity late into the evening

Photo 3

This photo shows the bling spot on the bend of Bryan Avenue in the evening. This spot has
frequent accidents and the Council have already put speed bumps into the spot to reduce the risk
— but to no avail

Here in March 2021 a delivery scooter driver clipped a car and was severely injured and we
understand may have died
Please can you confirm my text and photos are added to the pack

Also please can other people send in photos to add to the evidence pack

PHOTO 1

Page 45


Linda.Legister
Line

Linda.Legister_1
Line

Linda.Legister_2
Line


PHOTO 2

PHOTO 3

Page 46


Linda.Legister_3
Line


Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Additional Photos 2 from Resident Rep 20

These two photos show the blind bend on a sloping part of Bryan Avenue where in March the
delivery driver had a fatal or near fatal accident on a bike

This spot has had numerous accidents including a car that came down the street not knowing there
was a bend and went into a wall of a garden causing it to collapse, luckily none was on the street
at the time

These two accidents as well as numerous minor scrapes show that Bryan Avenue is a danger spot
for road users and pedestrians, which is why Brent Council has put in speed bumps (what has not
stopped incidents like this)

Page 49


Linda.Legister_4
Line


Page 50


Linda.Legister_5
Line

Linda.Legister_6
Line

Linda.Legister_7
Line

Linda.Legister_8
Line

Linda.Legister_9
Line


14-04-21

Good afternoon,

Please accept this attached petition from residents of Bryan Avenue and the surrounding streets in
opposition to the proposed licence for the warehouse at 113 Bryan Ave. Many other residents have
sent in their own independent objections — the names included below are of neighbours less able to
use the online portal who wished to have their strong objections noted.

The listed residents are concerned by the following factors:

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder — With alcohol being stored in the warehouse on a quiet
residential street the risk of break-ins are increased. During the pandemic several retail
establishments in the area have had people coming in and stealing alcohol. Bryan Avenue has also
had spates of break-ins over the years and we do not need a crime magnet in the area.

Public Safety — Bryan Avenue is a narrow street with a blind curve % of the way up with cars
regularly parked on both sides all along its length. The influx of delivery drivers/riders rushing up
and down the road is very likely to end in an accident for either a driver or a local pedestrian. At
11pm on March 8™ a delivery driver was in a life altering accident (we do not know if they survived)
right around the area of the curve. 11pm is within the requested operation hours of the license so
with more and more delivery persons zooming up the hill this sort of accident will only increase.

The prevention of Public Nuisance — Bryan Avenue is a quiet road where due to the layout of the
buildings most of the resident’s bedrooms face the street. The hours associated with the license
request are entirely out of keeping with any business that has been in operation previously (the
proposed hours of operation are 8am — 12am, 7 days a week). These hours, especially when
combined with the lack of provision for couriers on the warehouse groundplan will lead to
disturbance throughout the evening/night as the couriers arrive and depart or loiter waiting for their
next callout. Bryan Avenue does not have a provision for public bins and the garden next to the
warehouse is meant to be for the residents of Grange House so any littering or congregation by
workers will have additional disruptive impact.

The Protection of Children from Harm — Bryan Avenue is a quiet residential street and thus is used
by school children of all ages as a safe route to walk to school. Due to the increase in traffic with
deliveries to the warehouse and couriers rushing to fulfil orders in the allotted 10 minutes there is a
risk of accident.

As you can hopefully see from the points laid out above the residents are deeply concerned about
the suitability of 113 Bryan Ave for a license and ask you take our objections under consideration.

Page 51



Many thanks

The residents of Bryan Avenue

Page 52



EXTRACT FROM ISLINGTON GAZETTE MENTIONED
IN RESIDENTS REPS

Neighbours hit by noise nuisance from Gorillas' delivery
centre told: ‘Deal with it’

Published: 5:54 PM April 6, 2021
Godson Street in Angel where Gorillas delivery centre has set up - Credit: Google

Residents on a small pedestrianised alley in Angel are complaining about the noise from deliveries
at a warehouse operation set up in the tiny residential street.

Gorillas Technologies were quizzed at a council licensing meeting as to why they had set up their
“dark store” in a small unit in Godson Street, which neighbours say reverberates to the noise of
trollies servicing its grocery deliveries.

Islington councillors granted an alcohol licence despite neighbours' objections to the Berlin-based
firm, which promises 10-minute deliveries within the local area

Gorillas’ legal representative told councillors on the licensing committee: “They have lots of little

warehouses all over the place to deliver groceries within a small radius but a very fast response
time.

"They opened one in Hackney before this one, and have applied for about 25 around London,
Manchester and Southampton.

“The difficulty for the residents is that all of the objections are nothing to do with the licence
application.

“What the residents are saying is that they don’t want Gorillas there, and that’s a problem for them,
I’'m afraid, that can’t be solved, because we are there, and whether a licence is granted or not, we
are going to be there anyway.

"They’ve got it and they’re going to have to deal with it," they added, explaining that given the
small unit is less than 500 sgm2, it operates under permitted development rights, meaning there are
no planning restrictions.

One neighbour said: “I live round the back and I can still hear the trollies there.

“Godson Street is an alleyway of riven stone, pedestrianised, and is filled with residents.

“We were assured that they would only use soft-wheel trollies, but the wheels are the most
important issue.

“This is a family street. We want to plant trees. We want this to be an oasis.”
Councillors granted an alcohol sales licence on the condition that loading and unloading of trollies

would be carried out “to minimise noise and not give rise to nuisance,” with licensable goods
deliveries restricted to between 9am and 4pm.

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



04 Licensing

City of Westminster Committee Report

Meeting: Licensing Committee

Date: Wednesday 5th July 2017

Classification: For General Release

Title: Developing an approach to tackle the growing

impact on local residents from food and drink
delivery services

Wards Affected: All

Financial Summary: N/A

Report of: Director for Public Protection and Licensing
1. Executive Summary

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

1.6

Concern has been growing over the last year in relation to the impact of
nuisance caused by food and drink delivery services, on local residents within
Westminster. The Licensing Service, in conjunction with colleagues in
Residential Services, has considered powers and options available to tackle
the issues of nuisance caused by these deliveries from licensed premises.

There are limitations to the legislative controls available within the Licensing Act
2003 and the conditions that can be applied to address issues of public
nuisance, associated with deliveries of non-alcoholic drinks and food.

Conditions can only be applied to licensable activities, that is, the sale of
alcohol, supply of alcohol by a club, provision of regulated entertainment
or the provision of late night refreshment between 23:00 and 05:00 hours.

Often nuisance is associated with food and drink deliveries during the course
of the day or evening when alcohol is not included in the delivery, and before
late night refreshment conditions apply after 23:00 hours.

However, the Licensing Service is committed to working with colleagues

across the council, other stakeholders and businesses to identify and
implement effective measures to reduce or eliminate this growing nuisance.

The Licensing Service has identified some options to explore, having
considered significant areas of concern affecting residents in recent cases.

Page 55



1.7

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Key to any approach is early engagement with the licensee and delivery
service provider, encouraging them to promote corporate social
responsibility. In addition, we aim to develop a set of standards that licensed
operators and delivery service providers should adhere to.

This report sets out the key issues of concern and the proposed stepped
approach to attempting to tackle them. Whilst the scope to which licensing
powers can be implemented is limited, it is hoped that a joint approach with
other key services, both internally and externally, will reduce the impact of the
issues associated with delivery services on Westminster’s residents.

Recommendation

That members of the Committee consider the proposed approach set out in
paragraphs 8.1 to 8.5 below and provide their views on that approach.

Background

The delivery of hot food is not a new concept, and has been developing for a
number of years. Prior to the development of recent on line technology and
apps, the most common hot food delivery service was via the telephone and
delivery was provided by pizza companies via scooters.

With the advent of new technology we have seen development of a labour
market characterised by short-term contracts or freelance jobs: the ‘gig
economy’. In the gig economy, instead of a regular wage, workers get paid
for the “gigs” they do, such as a food delivery to private homes. The
companies that operate within the gig economy provide an opportunity for
individuals to be self-employed and work freelance. The gig economy is
technology driven and without the development of smart phones, apps and
mobile optimized websites, some of these companies’ services would not be
possible.

We have seen in the last few years a significant increase in the use of third
party delivery services. These services establish an agreement with a food
and drink provider, such as a restaurant, to provide a portal for both ordering
of food and a delivery service. The most prominent food and drink delivery
service provider within Westminster is Deliveroo. However, Uber Eats
delivery service is also growing within London.

In addition to the delivery of hot food and drink, there has also been an
increase in licensed premises seeking off-sales of alcohol via phone or
internet orders, for delivery. Restaurants and fast food operators are also
including alcohol, in addition to the food that they produce for delivery. There
are also operators who seek to primarily sell and deliver alcohol. Delivery of
alcohol is not new and supermarkets and specialist alcohol suppliers have
been operating delivery services for years.

Page 56



3.5

3.6

3.7

4.1

4.2.

4.3

4.4

There are two particular types of retail trade, which appear to be growing in
the United Kingdom. Firstly, there are independent convenience stores that
already hold a licence that permits off-sales of alcohol. These operations are
now looking to provide delivery of alcohol services. In some circumstances,
this may mean that the licensee applies to vary their licence to extend the
hours for the sale of alcohol, but limit this to off-sales via delivery services
only. The delivery service may or may not be combined with the delivery of
other non-licensable goods from the store.

The second retail trade where alcohol provision seems to be growing is from
dedicated delivery services that have been established around the country
which do not offer public access to their premises and operate only as a
phone and internet delivery service.

The delivery of alcohol provides some additional challenges in terms of the
child protection licensing objective. It is expected that the licensee and the
delivery rider/driver is ultimately responsible for ensuring that any alcohol is
not purchased and delivered to anyone under 18 years of age.

Growing impact on local residents

There has been a growing issue surrounding nuisance associated with food
and drink delivery riders/drivers from premises within Westminster. Deliveries
from premises often relate to premises that offer hot food deliveries, some of
which are licensed. These operators often use either their own delivery staff
or a third party food delivery services such as Deliveroo, Uber Eats, etc.

Operators that use their own delivery service have not specifically been
identified as causing nuisance issues to residents. However, there has been
some concern relating to the number of moped vehicles parked during the day
in resident parking bays or on the pavement. The main concerns are
associated with third party delivery services which have been identified by
residents via the cooperate branding that the drivers wear/carry or that is
adorned on their vehicles.

Complaints concerning the noise from delivery riders/drivers are one of the
main points that residents raise with the Council. There is a tendency for
delivery riders/drivers to congregate in a location which can often be near to
residential properties. The noise generated by the delivery riders/drivers
talking on their phones, talking to one another and playing music seems to be
the predominant issues. The scooters and mopeds can also cause noise
disturbances to residents.

It has been identified that third party delivery operators do designate locations
within the City where riders/drivers can await a gig. It is possible that these
designated locations are the main areas where noise disturbances are
created.

Page 57



4.5

4.6

4.7

5.1

The noise from riders/drivers cannot be classified as a statutory nuisance due
to the limited time in which the noise or emissions occurs. However, the
noises that are being reported to the council occur at unsociable hours of the
day when the ambient noise is reduced and residents can have their sleep
interrupted or the peaceful enjoyment of their homes impaired. Therefore this
noise nuisance can cause considerable impacts on local residents.

One of the other effects of riders/drivers congregating in an area is the issue
of litter and also urination in the street. Some complaints to the Council have
identified that riders/drivers in an area often leave litter from food and drink
that is consumed at the location. Urination around the areas of gathering
riders/drivers is also common. Some residents have also complained of
riders/drivers using their gardens or parts of their property for urination which
causes particular concern to those residents.

When residents have confronted riders/drivers over noise, litter and general
behaviour they can be abusive to residents or generally dismissive of their
concerns.

4.8 Obstruction cause by scooters and mopeds parking on the highway has also

been raised by residents. However, there are exemptions and specific
allowances for certain vehicles which permit these vehicles to be parked
there for a time before parking enforcement notices can be issued. The
understanding of the laws and requirements surrounding parking can be
complicated and, as a result, residents may believe that the vehicles are
parked in contravention when in reality they are parked in accordance with
these exemptions.

Challenges

The issues of nuisance from third party delivery riders/drivers appear to be
growing problem for residents in some areas. There is a need to try and
reduce or eliminate the issues that some residents are facing. However, there
are some specific challenges to tackling these issues. These challenges are:

5.2.1 In some cases, the delivery services causing disturbances are
delivering on behalf of premises which are not licensed and
therefore licensing controls will not be relevant.

5.2.2 Noise and other issues from riders/drivers can occur when they are

waiting for a gig and are not associated with specific licensed
premises at that time.

Page 58



5.3

6.1

6.2

7.1

5.2.3 lIdentification of the rider/driver causing the noise or other anti-sociable
behaviour is not always possible.

5.2.4 Riders/drivers for third party delivery services are not employees of the
delivery service or licensed premises so controlling their behaviour may
present difficulties.

5.2.5 Unwillingness from the third party delivery service providers and
licensed premises to engage with the Council or other partners
to address these issues.

The issues surrounding third party delivery services and nuisance seem to be
specific to London at the moment. The Licensing Service has been in contact
with colleagues from Manchester, Leeds, Brighton & Hove and Birmingham
City Council’s. Although these authorities have a similar growth in the gig
economy associated with food and alcohol delivery services, they have not
received specific complaints from local residents concerning nuisance from
these riders/drivers.

Environmental concerns from delivery vehicles

The environmental impact from these delivery vehicles is something that
cannot be controlled via licensing. The licensing of premises is strictly limited
to the promoting the four licensing objectives, which at the present time does
not include health or protecting the environment.

There are views that delivery services should be provided through more
environmentally friendly vehicles. The Council can promote its views that
licensed premises should look to use delivery services that use low or non-
polluting vehicles for delivering from premises. The Council can emphasise
the corporate social responsibility for businesses within Westminster by
encouraging the businesses to develop their own initiatives to assess and
take responsibility for the companies’ effects on environmental and social
wellbeing. In addition to operators committing to using low or no emission
vehicles, they can also set out further commitments to using renewable
energy, recycling packaging and oil, using less water and using biodegradable
packaging. For example, operators can commit to the use of electric vehicles
for deliveries to and from premises. Some takeaway delivery services do use
cyclists to deliver food but the vast majority are via delivery scooters.

Use of Licensing to potentially reduce the impact to resident

The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) governs the licensing of these premises.
The Act does require that the operation of any licensed premises must

Page 59



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

promote to the four licensing objectives. One of these licensing objectives is
the prevention of public nuisance.

The Licensing Authority has placed conditions on licensed premises relating to
deliveries following representations from local residents and/or responsible
authorities. However, for late night refreshment the conditions imposed on
deliveries would only apply after 11pm and before 5am, when that activity is
licensable. If the premises provide food takeaway delivery services prior to
11pm then the Licensing Authority cannot attach conditions relating to that
service. If the premises provide a delivery service for alcohol then any delivery
service can be conditioned to promote the licensing objectives.

Although there are challenges to addressing the issues through licensing
alone, there are options through education, engagement, collaboration and,
where necessary, regulatory control. By working with licensed premises and
the third party delivery providers some of the issues can be considered and
addressed.

Licensed premises that offer a delivery service should be encouraged to
support the Council in reducing the impact on local residents from
inconsiderate and irresponsible delivery riders/drivers. Seeking the support of
major operators will enable engagement with the third party delivery providers
to address specific issues. For example, an agreement could be reached
where waiting areas for gigs are assigned and geo-fenced areas established
via apps to prevent jobs being received in areas that are considered sensitive.

The Council may also consider developing with licensed operators and third
party delivery services a voluntary code of practice for the delivery service
sector. That code of practice could cover the behaviour of riders/drivers to
prevent noise nuisance, prevent illegal parking, reduce litter and prevent the
sale of alcohol to under 18’s. The code could include the ability to identify
riders/drivers through unique identification numbers or via the use of any
mobile phone app. The code would encourage third party delivery operators
to implement policies and ensure that the code is adhered to by the
riders/drivers who sign up with the organisation. The policy would also
indicate what action would be taken against riders/drivers who fail to comply
with the code. There may also be the opportunity to include an environmental
impact element in the code relating to the use of low or no emission vehicles.
Any delivery service that agrees to operate to this code would then be
considered as an approved third party delivery service provider by the
Council. This code of practice could be adopted as part of the Council’s
Licensing Policy for licensed premises that offer delivery services.

Page 60



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

Proposed approach

In developing its approach to reducing the impact of delivery services on local
residents the Licensing Service would implement a stepped approach to
working to reduce the impact of delivery services on local residents.

Firstly the Licensing Service along with other relevant internal and external
stakeholders will identify and analyse the issues associated with food and
drink delivery services across the city. This will specifically look at the areas
where the issues seem to be the most severe. This may include engagement
with local residents in key areas to further develop our understanding of the
key issues.

Once the exact level and locations of the issues are identified the service will
engage with licensed premises that provide a delivery service and third party
delivery service providers. This will enable a discussion on the impacts that
have been identified and what options could be implemented by the licensed
operators, delivery services and the council to reduce those impacts. This
could involve small changes in operation that would achieve rapid results,
such as relocating staging areas for riders/drivers from residential areas,
providing further information to riders/drivers on how they should behave
and where they are and are not permitted to park.

This approach may, if successful lead to a set of agreed principles that could
then be drawn up into a specific charter or code of practice for the offer of
delivery services within the City. The fundamental principles of any charter or
code would be:

e Residents are not caused nuisance or disturbed by any delivery
service providers,

e All delivery services are provided in a courteous, safe and
respectful manner, and

e All deliveries are provided in accordance with the law on road use,
parking and licensing.

If there is a lack of engagement in this area and/or there is limited effect in
reducing any local impact then the council may consider more enforcement
led options such as specific conditions on licences restricted services and the
development of specific licensing policies to address public nuisance from
delivery services.

Page 61



9.1

10.

10.1
11.

111

12.

12.1

12.2

Financial Implications
There are no financial implications as a result of this report.

Legal Implications

There are no legal implications as a result of this report.

Staffing Implications

There are no staffing implications as a result of this report. All of the work in
this area is being undertaken using the current resources within the Licensing
Team.

Reason for Decision

The proposed approach set out in paragraph 8 above will enable the Council
to raise awareness associated with the impact of delivery services to
residents, where those impacts are more prominent within the City and to
attempt to establish an agreed code of practice to try and tackle those issues.

The proposed approach will be specific to licensed premises but may have a
greater impact on the reduction of the impact on residents from non-licensed
and licensed premises if the main operators engage and agree to adopt any
code of practice.

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background
papers please contact

Appendices

None

Background Papers

Licensing Act 2003
Council’s Licensing Policy

Page 62



METROPOLITAN

POLICE Working together for a safer London

TERRITORIAL POLICING

NW BCU Licensing Department - Brent
Harrow Police Station
74, Northolt Road

Brent Police Licensing Unit
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way

Wembley Harrow

Middlesex HA2 ODN

HA9 OFJ Tel: 020 8733 5008
Email:

nwmailbox.licensingbrent@met.police.uk
Web: www.met.police.uk
Your Ref: 20885

Our ref: 01QK/78/21/3302NW Date: 7t" April 2021

Police representations to the application for a new Premises Licence for ‘Gorillas
Technologies Ltd’, T/A ‘Gorillas, 113, Bryan Avenue, NW10 2AS

| certify that | have considered the application shown above and | wish to make
representations that the likely effect of the grant of the application is detrimental to the
Council’s Licensing Objectives for the reasons indicated below.

| am of the opinion that the risk to the Council’s objectives can be mitigated by removing the
requested variations or attaching conditions to the Licence as shown below. If these
conditions were accepted in full, | would withdraw my representation.

Officer: Paul Scott
Licensing Constable 3302NW

An officer of the Metropolitan Police, in whose area the premises are situated, who is
authorised for the purposes of exercising its statutory function as a ‘Responsible Authority’

under the Licensing Act 2003.

The application has been made for a new premises licence under section 17 of the act. The
Police representations are concerned with all four of the licensing objectives.

Police therefore require the following points should be included in the operating schedule
or added as conditions on the premises licence.

Personal Licence Holder

The sale of alcohol to drunken people and children is a major cause of concern to police and
highlighted in the Governments Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy. Those who sell or provide
alcohol should be fully aware of the legislation and issues around alcohol and should be fully
trained to a national standard.

Page 63




Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

Good quality CCTV is essential as a deterrent for the prevention of crime and the detection
of offenders. It allows for both covert and overt monitoring of the premises. With proper
signage, this reassures both staff and clientele, that this is a safe environment where illegal
activities are not tolerated.

All cameras and recording equipment will be installed and maintained in accordance with
Home Office Guidance and the manufacturer’s instructions and will be fully operational

when the premises are open.

Operating Hours to be displayed on Premises

A notice displaying the opening hours, the type of licensing activity and licence conditions
should be clearly displayed and visible to anyone outside the premises. This may be
incorporated in the summary of the licence, which must be displayed, or take the form of a
separate item. Likewise, the name of the Designated Premises Supervisor (D.P.S.) should be
similarly displayed. This will allow the Police and other responsible authorities to readily
identify the licence details.

Police require the following points should be added as conditions on the premises licence
as below:

1. CCTV shall be installed to Home Office Guidance standards and maintained in a good
working condition and recordings shall be kept for 31 days and shall be made available to
police and authorised Officers from Brent Council upon request.

2. CCTV camera shall be installed to cover all the entrances and exits of the premises and
further cameras installed to cover the loading bay area.

3. A member of staff trained in the use of the CCTV system shall be available at the premise
at all times that the premises are open for trading.

4. The CCTV system shall display on any recordings the correct date and time of the
recording.

5. The CCTV system shall be capable of obtaining clear facial recognition images and a clear
head and shoulder image of every person entering or leaving the premises.

6. All sales of alcohol are for delivery only. There are to be no collections of alcohol by
members of the public.

7. An incident and refusals log shall be kept at the premises and made available for
inspection on request to an authorised officer of Brent Council or the Police, which will
record the following;

a) Any complaints received.

b) Any incidents of disorder.

c¢) Any faults in the CCTV system.

d) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol.

e) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

Page 64




f) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol.

8. At the time the order is placed, a declaration will be required from the person placing the
order that the person is over ‘18 years of age’.

9. A “Challenge 25” policy shall be adopted and adhered to at all times. If the driver
considers the recipient of alcohol appears under 25, recognised photographic identification
to be requested before any alcohol is given to the recipient.

10. Acceptable of proof of age shall include identification bearing the customer’s
photograph, date of birth and integral holographic mark or security measure. Suitable
means of identification would include PASS approved proof of age card, photo-card driving
licence and passport. No ID — No delivery.

11. Drivers shall not deliver to any person anywhere other than that at the
residential/business address given when the order was placed. There shall be NO deliveries
made to any open/public spaces.

12. All delivery drivers shall be a minimum of eighteen (18) years of age.

13. Staff training must be documented and based on legislation and operating procedures.

All training shall be signed and dated and a copy of such records will be available for
inspection by Police and Local authority enforcement officers.

Yours Sincerely,

PC Paul Scott 3302NW
NW BCU - Brent Licensing
Paul.Scott9@met.police.uk

Page 65




This page is intentionally left blank



From: Paul.Scott9@met.police.uk

Sent: 07 April 2021 09:01

To: craig.baylis

Cc: Business Licence

Subject: RE: Gorillas Technologies Ltd - 20885

Morning Craig,

Thank you for your reply.

| can confirm that representations made by police have now been withdrawn.
Ref: 78/20885.

Kind regards,

Paul

From: Craig Baylis

Sent: 07 April 2021 08:43

To: Scott Paul - NW-CU

Cc: business.licence

Subject: Re: Gorillas Technologies Ltd - 20885

Morning Paul. Happy to accept these conditions.

Sent from my iPhone

Page 67


mailto:business.licence@brent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way

(?3 Brent U s

TEL 020 8937 5303

EMAIL esther.chan@brent.gov.uk

WEB www.brent.gov.uk

Craig Baylis

18t April 2021

Our Ref: 20885
Dear Craig Baylis,

Licensing Representation to the Initial Application for the Premises Licence at Gorillas
Technologies Ltd, 113 Bryan Avenue, London, NW10 2AS

| certify that | have considered the application shown above and | wish to make a representation
that the likely effect of the grant of the application is detrimental to the Licensing Objectives for
the reasons indicated below.

An officer of the Licensing Authority, in whose area the premises are situated, who is
authroised for the purposes of exercising its statutory function as a ‘Responsible
Authority’ under the Licensing Act 2003.

The application has been made for a new premises licence under section 17 of the Act.

The Licensing Authority representations are primarily concerned with the four licensing objectives;

. the prevention of crime and disorder;
. public safety;

. the prevention of public nuisance; and
. the protection of children from harm.

The Licensing Authority require the following points to be included in the operating schedule or
added as conditions on the premises licence:

1. Challenge 25 — if the driver considers the recipient of alcohol appears under 25, recognised
photographic identification to be requested before any alcohol is given to the recipient.

2. Acceptable proof of age shall include identification bearing the customer’s photograph, date
of birth and integral holographic mark or security measure. Suitable means of identification
would include PASS approved proof of age card, photo-card driving licence and passport.
No ID — No delivery.

Page 69


http://www.brent.gov.uk/
Linda.Legister_10
Line

Linda.Legister_11
Line

Linda.Legister_12
Line


9.

Staff training must be documented and based on legislation and operating procedures. All
training shall be signed and dated and a copy of such records will be available for
inspection by Police and local authority enforcement officers.

At the time the order is placed, a declaration will be required from the person placing the
order that the person is over ‘18 years of age’.

Alcohol shall only be delivered to a residential or business address and not to a public place.

Alcohol will only be delivered to the person who placed the order and whose name appears
on the credit/debit card.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available for inspection on request
to an authorised officer of Brent Council or the Police, which will record the following:

(a) any complaints received

(b) any incidents

(c) any refusal of the sale of alcohol

(d) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

Members of the general public must not be allowed access to the premises in order to buy,
collect, browse or be supplied directly with alcohol at any time.

The Minimum age of delivery drivers will be 18.

In order for the Licensing Authority to withdraw this representation, it will be necessary for you to
confirm in writing that your client is willing to accept the above conditions.

Yours faithfully

Ehon

Esther Chan
Licensing Inspector
Regulatory Services

Page 70



From: Esther, Chan

Sent: 01 April 2021 09:03

To: Craig Baylis

Cc: Business Licence

Subject: RE: CONSULT: New Premises - Gorillas, 113 Bryan Avenue, London, NW10 2AS -
20885

Dear Craig Baylis,
Thank you for your email.

The Licensing Authority wish to withdraw our representation and have no further
comments.

Kind Regards
Esther Chan
Licensing Inspector
Regulatory Services
Brent Council

From: Craig Baylis

Sent: 01 April 2021 08:51

To: Esther, Chan

Cc: Business Licence

Subject: Re: CONSULT: New Premises - Gorillas, 113 Bryan Avenue, London, NW10 2AS -
20885

These conditions are agreed

Sent from my iPhone

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



0 0.02  0.04 kilometres = ©rent
1 1

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Application for a New Premises Licence by Gorillas Technologies Ltd for premises known as Gorillas, 113 Bryan Avenue, NW10 2AS, pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003
	3.2 Gorillas - Application
	3.3 Gorillas - Proposed Conditions
	3.4 Gorillas - Plan
	3.5 Gorillas - Resident Reps
	3.6 Gorillas - Resident Rep 41
	3.7 Gorillas - Resident Rep 60
	3.8 Gorillas - Councillor Reps
	3.9 Gorillas - Resident Rep 20 - Additional Photos
	3.9.1 Gorillas - Resident Rep 20 - Additional Photos 2
	3.10 Gorillas - Petition - Covering Letter
	3.11 Gorillas - Islington Gazette Extract
	3.12 Gorillas - Westminster Report on Delivery Services
	3.13 Gorillas - Police Reps
	3.14 Gorillas - Police Reps Withdrawn
	3.15 Gorillas - Licensing Rep
	3.16 Gorillas - Licensing Rep Withdrawn
	3.17 Gorillas - OS Map


